GRAND RAPIDS-KE

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Wednesday, August 27, 2008
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA
L Call to Order
i IL. Approval of June 25, 2008, Minutes Action
onvention
i III. Committee Reports
7 a. Operations Committee
i. . Operations Committee Report
sfeven Heacock, e Update on DeVos Place® Artwork Applications Information
Cheirmon ii. CVB Report Information
Birgit Klohs
g:rcx:::me b. Finance Committee
Geoyrge Heoﬂwye“ i. SMG June & July 2008 Financial Statements Action
Josoph Tomasell DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Lew Chamberlia il. CAA June & July 2008 Financial Statements Action
iii. Renewal of D&O and Liability Insurance Information
iv. ~ Fiscal Year 2008 Audit Plan Information
IV. Resolution to Approve Consent to Easement Grant Action
in Connection with 201 Monroe Avenue Easement Agreement
V. Diversity Statement Information
V1. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information

VII. Public Comment
VIII. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 24, 2008

IX. Adjournment

VAN ANDEL
ARENA
CRAND RAPIDS

Van Andel Arena® DeVos Places®
130 Fulton West 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590




IL

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, June 25, 2008

Item 11

Birgit Klohs, Secretary/Treasurer, called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Ms. Klohs presided, in

the absence of Chair Heacock and Vice Chair Tomaselli, and Susan Waddell recorded the

meeting minutes.
Attendance

Members Present:

Members Absent:

Staff/Others:

Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles
George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney

Steve Heacock
Joseph Tomaselli

David Czurak
Jim Day

Daryl Delabbio
Brian Dykema
Rich Glaser

Tim Gortsema
George Helmstead
Lynne Ike

Kurt Kimball
Rich MacKeigan
Robert Mihos
Eddie Tadlock
Susan Waddell
Jana Wallace

Minutes of Prior Meeting

Grand Rapids Business Journal

Kent County
Kent County
Interested Citizen
Dickinson Wright

Grand Rapids Rampage

CVB
SMG

City of Grand Rapids

SMG
Kent County
SMG
CAA

City of Grand Rapids

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Minutes of the May 28, 2008,

meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried

unanimously.

III.

Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that the Committee has been discussing the possibility of installing art work at

DeVos Place®. Mr. MacKeigan presented three options for potential art displays in the DeVos Place®

skywalk:

1. A photo contest for iconic images of West Michigan that would be open to the public;
2. A multi-media art installation that would incorporate video in motion and a mural;



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25,2008 — 2

3. Straight bid process to a local artist.

The Committee focused on the first two options, since option 1 involves the community and option 2 is
attractive and distinctive. Staff will develop a budget and present it to the Committee before any
recommendation is made. Committee members will walk the space at its next meeting to see the
proposed artwork locations.

Mr. Watt presented the proposed fiscal year 2009 capital budget request. The budget request totaled $1.8
million, with $360,000 of carryover projects. Mr. Mihos stated that he met with Mr. Watt several times to
review the capital projects. Most of the Committee’s discussion of capital focused on the concourse
expansion project. Committee members walked the proposed construction area to conceptualize how the
Arena lobby would be impacted. Committee members offered suggestions to preserve the aesthetics and
scale of the lobby, such as installing a glass floor and angling the concourse so that it would open up to
the lobby windows).

Mr. MacKeigan presented an update on the upcoming International Wine & Food Festival. The
Committee approved a resolution to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission
for a special liquor license. The special license allows nonprofit organizations to obtain a one-day license
to sell alcoholic beverages to the public. The license fee is $25 for each separate, consecutive day of the
event and an additional $3.75 for Sunday sales.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved for approval to submit an application to
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for a special liquor license. The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Helmstead presented a report on recent sales activities and major bid presentations. The CVB hosted
the RCMA Board this past weekend, which was the first time the members visited Grand Rapids. The
CVB is also working on bids for the Association of Fish and Wildlife, the Association of Partners for
Public Land, and International Society of Glass Bead Makers conventions and will be traveling to Salt
Lake City, Utah, to bid on the International Association of Assessing Officers.

b. Finance Committee.
i. SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended May 31, 2008. After review and
discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

ii. CAA Financial Statements

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for
the period ended May 31, 2008. After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

iii. Fiscal Year 2009 SMG Facility Operating Budgets

Mr. Machuta presented the proposed fiscal year 2009 operating budgets for DeVos Place® and the Van
Andel Arena® last month and the information has not changed in the interim.

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the DeVos Place® and Van Andel
Arena® Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009. The motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25,2008 -3

iv. Fiscal Year 2009 CAA Administrative Budget

Mr. White presented the proposed fiscal year 2009 administrative budget and consolidated income '
statement last month and the information has not changed in the interim.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Operating Budget and Consolidated Income Statement for the Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, 2009. The motion carried unanimously.

v. Fiscal Year 2008 Budget Amendment

SMG forecasts Fiscal Year 2008 spending in excess of the previously authorized budget for the Van
Andel Arena®. The current operating budget totals $3,622,718, with an updated current-year expenditure
of $3,721,922. Because the CAA is a public entity, it must adopt a resolution authorizing an increase in
the budget of the Van Andel Arena® to equal the spending estimate.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve an amendment to the Fiscal Year 2008
operating budget for the Van Andel Arena®, increasing the expenditure from $3,622,718 to 33,721,922
The motion carried unanimously.

vi. Investment Policy Recommendation

Ms. Klohs reported that the Finance Committee has had extensive dialogue about the CAA’s investment
policy and investments. The CAA currently invests in Kent County’s pooled investment fund, and Chair
Heacock requested the Finance Committee to review the investments and determine whether it could
obtain a better return in different investment vehicles. Mr. White provided the Committee with a
comparative analysis of the County’s pooled investment rates with one-year U.S. Treasury obligations of
the term of 42 months. The pooled investment account has returned an average interest rate of 4.14%
versus the benchmark rate of 4.06%. Finance Committee members concurred there was no reason to
change the investments at this time and will review the investments again in a year.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to re-adopt the investment policy of the Grand
Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried unanimously.

Iv. DeVos Place® Five-Year Rate Sheets

Mr. MacKeigan requested approval of the five-year rate sheets, covering the period July 1, 2008-June 30,
2013. SMGQG has established a five-year rate card to provide potential clients a guarantee of rental rates in
outlying years. The rate increases average 3-4% and reflects current comparisons for rental rates of
comparable venues of similar size. The rate sheets have been reviewed by the CVB and hotel
community. The first four years have been approved and SMG requests approval of the fifth year rates.

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to re-adopt the DeVos Place® Five-Year
Rental Rates, as requested. The motion carried unanimously.

V. DeVos Place Parking Facility — City Auto Parking Services Contract

The City and the CAA first entered into a “Parking Operation and Maintenance Agreement” for DeVos
Place® in January 2004. That contract expired on June 30, 2005, and was renewed under the same
general terms and conditions scheduled to now expire on June 30, 2008. The services provided under the
existing agreement included staffing of the parking booths (operations), security (roving security



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 25,2008 — 4

personnel who provide both security and customer assistance), and routine maintenance including
striping, wash-down, cleaning, and sweeping (facilities maintenance). The proposed new contract retains
the services of the City-Auto Parking System for operations and security. The facilities maintenance
requirements would be provided by SMG. This recommendation is being made in order to eliminate a
significant overlap in maintenance responsibilities between SMG and Auto Parking System personnel. In
addition, the Authority would significantly reduce its cost exposure.

The Fiscal Year 2008 budget, previously approved, provided a budgetary allowance of $365,243 for
services provided under the existing Auto Parking System — Operating and Maintenance Agreement. The
proposed Fiscal Year 2009 budget, originally submitted by Auto Parking System, totaled $332,199. After
removal of the facilities maintenance portion of the original budget submittal, the revised budget request
totals $281,495. The budgetary request submitted by SMG for facilities maintenance totals $25,000,
including a one-time expense of $8,000 for extension of water service lines into the facility. This
represents a savings of approximately $25,000 from the budgetary forecast submitted by the City-Auto
Parking System.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the DeVos Place® Parking
Operation Agreement, as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

VI 201 Monroe, NW Easement Update

Mr. MacKeigan reported there were no significant updates and he is waiting for appraisal documentation.

VII. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

VIII. Public Comment

None.

IX. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, August 27, 2008. The July meeting is canceled.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Item IILDb.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

#**DRAFT — UNAUDITED***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending June 30, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

June June June
Actual Budget FY 2007
32 23 27
18,406 25,875 26,782
$77,108 $94,971 $79,700
86,007 35,532 155,243
7,609 19,087 26,053
(467,203) (372,753) (474,870)
($296,479) ($223,163) ($213,873)
YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
595 647 656
6,484,478 723,350 659,621
$2,601,365 $2,541,693 $2,459,874
2,135,821 2,060,755 2,160,615
173,846 229,000 239,559
(5,374,839) (5,353,726) (5,410,796)
($463,807) ($522,278) ($550,748)

Event income came in lower than budget for the month as the facility hosted more smaller events than

was anticipated.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in higher than budget for the month. While the facility hosted smaller events that

led to lower rental income, it was offset by ancillary spending.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month, and fiscal year.




DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 595 595 647 (52)
ATTENDANCE 648,478 648,478 723,350 (74,872)
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 2,601,365 2,601,365 2,541,693 59,672
ANCILLARY REVENUE 2,135,821 2,135,821 2,060,745 75,076
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 4,737,186 - 4,737,186 4,602,438 134,748
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 173,846 173,846 229,000 (55,154)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,911,032 - 4,911,032 4,831,438 79,594
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 139,321 139,321 166,596 27,275
FINANCE 211,709 211,709 208,548 (3,161)
MARKETING 63,740 63,740 104,657 40,917
OPERATIONS 1,435,572 1,435,572 1,385,380 (50,192)
EVENT SERVICES 1,010,588 1,010,588 944,447 (66,141)
BOX OFFICE 70,756 70,756 77,626 6,870
SALES 210,053 210,053 248,723 38,670
OVERHEAD 2,233,099 2,233,099 2,217,749 (15,350)

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 5,374,838 - 5,374,838 5,353,726 (21,112)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (463,806) - (463,806) (522,288) 58,482
INCENTIVE FEE 153,300 153,300 153,300 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (463,806) (153,300) (617,106) (675,588) 58,482

OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

DeVos concludes another successful fiscal year by not only beating budgeted
expectations, but lowering the overall deficit as compared to last fiscal year.

Each year that DeVos Place has been open the bottomline has shown improvement,
a trend we look to continue into FY 2009.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

----------------- CURRENT- <~ << mammmmmmmmmm= cmmmemmmmmemmmm e oYTDeommmmmmmmmmmw e eeas
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 93,651 104,975 154,878 2,793,624 2,735,875 2,677,937
SERVICES INCOME <16,543> <10, 004> <75,178> <192,258> <194,182> <218, 064>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 77,108 94,971 79,700 2,601,365 2,541,693 2,459,874
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 54,053 26,217 92,696 845,482 797,253 851,347
NOVELTY 0 425 4,329 13,866 13,571 20,292
ELECTRICAL 4,480 664 7,653 468,555 406,161 427,162
OTHER ANCILLARY 27,474 8,226 50,565 807,918 843,770 861,813
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 86,007 35,532 155,243 2,135,821 2,060,755 2,160,615
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 163,115 130,503 234,943 4,737,186 4,602,448 4,620,488
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7,609 19,087 26,053 173, 846 229,000 239,559
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 170,724 149,590 260,996 4,911,032 4,831,448 4,860,047
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE _ 8,528 13,872 11,677 139,321 166,596 136,116
FINANCE 18,766 17,379 17,446 211,709 208,548 218,358
MARKETING 9,506 8,715 5,961 63,740 104,657 70,392
OPERATIONS 181,132 109,283 197,449 1,435,572 1,385,380 1,488,961
EVENT MANAGEMENT 98,687 78,453 83,962 1,010,588 944,447 943,260
BOX OFFICE 5,589 6,467 2,471 70,756 77,626 83,221
SALES . 22,575 20,715 19,836 210,053 248,723 218,858
OVERHEAD 122,422 117,869 136,068 2,233,099 2,217,749 2,251,631
INDIRECT EXPENSES 467,203 372,753 474,870 5,374,839 5,353,726 5,410,796
NET OPERATING INCOME <296,479> <223,163> <213,873> <463,806> <522,278> <550,749>
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 100,546 0 0 100,546
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 100,546 0 0 100,546

NET INCOME (LOSS) <296,479>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

---------------- CURRENT-----=------=--cc =-=--=wu--------YEAR TO DATE--~---------~-
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 880 0 550 18,625 0 48,855
Changeover Setup Billed 4,005 0 6,730 18,794 0 14,468
Stagehands Billed 26,262 20,563 70,578 1,258,254 1,099,787 1,184,296
Security Billed 4,851 1,364 8,359 200,458 182,390 192,169
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 779 3,400 5,434 152,178 136,810 149,803
Box Office Billed 0 500 500 17,000 20,300 17,350
Ticketing Service Billed 1,036 3,400 16,923 146,107 175,450 169,731
Utilities Billed 347 4] 34 6,313 1] 3,675
City Police Fire Billed <220> 0 1,495 32,645 13,225 49,626
Traffic Control Billed 140 0 [ 1,120 200 0
EMT Medical Billed 750 625 1,450 33,843 35,100 45,324
Cleaning Billed ] 0 0 13,925 0 15,027
Insurance Billed 455 0 482 4,706 0 6,120
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 110 1,291 0 1,529
Telephone Billed . 300 150 300 40,925 32,610 45,740
Damages Billed 0 0 0 5,043 0 12,029
Other Production Billed 3,038 0 3,166 73,637 0 73,931
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 42,623 30,002 116,111 2,024,863 1,695,872 2,029,672
Advertising Expense 880 0 11,569 19,401 0 57,624
Sponsorship Expenses 0 [ 5,500 7,000 0 8,000
Stagehand Wages 24,544 19,225 120,550 1,177,962 1,048,590 1,165,568
Contracted Security Expense 11,035 1,488 14,243 321,791 253,913 289,769
Ushers & T/T Wages 545 2,380 3,804 102,666 92,914 104,862
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 0 0 524 0 0 524
Ticket Sellers Wages 90 1,450 696 20,865 51,650 21,719
Ticket Service Charge Expense 100 1,190 7,241 35,534 58,302 48,592
City Police Fire Expense 60 0 1,177 24,773 0 42,964
EMT Medical Expense 794 625 1,740 30,240 33,350 40,678
Cleaning Wages 0 [+] [] 7,172 0 5,070
Cleaning P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 677 0 0
Contracted Cleaning Expense 16,565 13,648 18,997 361,375 351,335 360,790
Insurance Expense 740 0 416 5,278 0 5,388
Group Sales Commissions 1] (] 0 0 0 207
Allocated Telephone Expense 75 [ 113 10,194 0 11,473
Equipment Rental Expense 0 0 [ 1,025 0 0
Damage Expense 0 0 V] 3,793 0 6,696
Production Expense 3,738 0 4,720 87,378 0 77,812
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 59,165 40,006 191,289 2,217,122 1,890,054 2,247,736

NET SERVICE INCOME <16,543> <10,004> <75,178> <192, 258> <194,182> <218,064>




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended June 30, 2008

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 169 153 187,005 193,800 2,108,043 2,007,744
Consumer/Gated Shows 58 64 195,902 227,300 1,014,020 998,016
Devos Performance Hall 145 154 174,726 189,550 770,145 705,450
Ballroom Exclusive 56 80 35,080 54,100 417,479 518,454
Other 167 196 55,765 58,600 427,499 372,784
GRAND TOTALS 595 647 648,478 723,350 4,737,186 4,602,448
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 28.40% 23.65% 28.84% 26.79% 44.50% 43.62%
Consumer/Gated Shows 9.75% 9.89% 30.21% 31.42% 21.41% 21.68%
Devos Performance Hall 24.37% 23.80% 26.94% 26.20% 16.26% 15.33%
Ballroom Exclusive 941% 12.36% 5.41% 7.48% 8.81% 11.26%

Other 28.07% 30.29% 8.60% 8.10% 9.02% 8.10%



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

630,122
509,293
85,390

1,224,804

95,771
384,989
72,032
389,236

<1,150,000>
1,512,579
383,953

<463,756>



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended June 30, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

51,177
3,119
385
17,068
257,913

111,583

52,914

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

509,293



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

----------------- CURRENT--=wwm=-=coc---mm= wm—cccee—-se—cmeee-YID---m---r=----—---c--

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 77,611 75,070 75,326 857,936 900,829 855,429
Part-Time 8,803 13,163 15,285 172,544 158,000 165,604
Wages-Trade 91,053 121,026 133,424 1,582,322 1,452,279 1,542,179
Sales Commissions Group Sales 0 0 80 330 0 931
Auto Allowance 2,071 2,269 2,121 24,500 27,250 25,450
Auto Expense 150 0 150 1,800 0 1,800
Taxes & Benefits 47,633 52,444 44,799 743,511 629,592 675,962

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <44,873> <113,138> <104,481> <1,554,318> <1,357,513> <1,490,522>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 182,448 150,834 166,704 1,828,624 1,810,437 1,776,833
Contracted Security 22,604 21,000 22,633 295,428 252,000 276,905
Contracted Cleaning 2,403 0 1,753 40,622 0 35,168
Other Contracted Services 215 200 190 2,431 2,400 2,386
Travel & Entertainment 2,143 1,201 2,500 18,705 14,500 16,431
Corporate Travel 0 413 914 1,077 5,000 914
Meetings & Conventions 1,193 1,962 509 15,814 32,000 16,775
Dues & Subscriptions 410 300 0 7,103 3,600 5,815
Employee Training 1,241 837 0 5,074 10,000 10,140
Miscellaneous Expense 82 0 0 182 0 264
Computer Expense 3,247 6,250 10,082 60,340 75,000 67,285
Professional Fees 2,250 3,038 2,250 27,187 36,500 30,891
Marketing & Advertising 5,192 6,800 2,768 41,748 81,600 40,460
Box Office Expenses 0 0 <134> 392 ] <227>
Vehicle Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 14
Trash Removal 2,049 2,500 1,068 33,617 30,000 33,740
Equipment Rental 1,320 1,000 2,648 16,890 12,000 18,540
Landscaping _ 1,062 837 1,062 8,493 10,000 11,522
Exterminating 22,220 1,000 814 50,363 56,440 52,226
Cleaning 1,250 4] 27,600 6,500 24,000 42,800
Construction Costs 0 0 0 0 0 150
Repairs & Maintenance 58,177 39,788 106,465 580,676 477,500 526,023
Supplies 39,625 24,587 5,958 230,982 295,000 280,159
Bank Service Charges 1,982 1,500 1,569 23,439 18,000 20,019
Insurance 16,280 22,192 20,725 273,889 266,249 269,576
Licenses & Fees 50 0 0 2,215 ] 3,489
Printing & Stationary 149 413 0 1,722 5,000 6,370
Office Supplies 1,757 750 703 15,176 9,000 18,232
Postage 533 413 1,531 4,314 5,000 4,888
Parking Expense 2,022 1,500 2,027 27,661 18,000 24,915
Relocation Expense 96 0 0 7,258 4] 0
Telephone Long Distance 6,844 6,000 7,614 90,520 72,000 90,741
Utilities 75,598 66,500 72,528 1,512,579 1,601,200 1,588,827
Base Fee 12,838 12,775 12,500 154,050 153,300 150,000

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <75> <1,837> <113> <10,231> <22,000> <11,473>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 284,756 221,919 308,166 3,546,215 3,543,289 3,633,964

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 467,203 372,753 474,870 5,374,839 5,353,726 5,410,796




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,623,832 (463,806) 1,160,026 1,238,267
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,623,832 (463,806) 460,026 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,559,434 4,911,032 10,470,466 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 909,434 861,032 1,770,466 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 306,600 306,600 613,200 600,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

***DRAFT — UNAUDITED***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An 5MG Managed Facility

Item IILDb.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

June concludes a successful fiscal year for the Arena. Concerts again remain
the driving force for bottom line activity as 26 concerts were hosted during the
fiscal year contributing almost $300,000 additional event income than was

budgeted.

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
118 118 116 2
664,317 664,317 666,500 (2,183)
1,590,799 1,590,799 1,149,287 441,512
1,435,974 1,435,974 1,541,746 (105,772)
3,026,773 . 3,026,773 2,691,033 335,740
2,532,661 2,532,661 2,395,000 137,661
5,550,434 - 5,559,434 5,086,033 473,401
254,137 254,137 146,498 (107,639)
198,940 198,940 204,274 5,334
275,980 275,980 282,151 6,171
1,478,376 1,478,376 1,487,583 9,207
141,439 141,439 119,613 (21,826)
121,185 121,185 117,298 (3,887)
43,898 43,898 39,856 (4,042)
1,421,647 1,421,647 1,378,745 (42,902)
3,935,602 - 3,935,602 3,776,018 (159,584)
1,623,832 - 1,623,832 1,310,015 313,817
153,300 153,300 153,300 -
1,623,832 (153,300) 1,470,532 1,156,715 313,817




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending June 30, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2007
Number of Events 3 2 5
Attendance 15,576 16,000 25,463
Direct Event Income $81,944 $523 $40,101
Ancillary Income 1,270 4,328 67,204
Other income 228,144 199,587 305,239
Indirect Expenses (352,703) (289,034) (396,330)
Net Income ($41,345) ($84,596) $16,214
YTD YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 118 115 130
Attendance 664,317 658,500 678,582
Direct Event Income $1,590,799 $1,149,287 $1,524,338
Ancillary Income 1,435,974 1,541,746 1,647,868
Other Income 2,532,661 2,395,000 2,506,635
Indirect Expenses (3,935,601) (3,776,018) (3,925,769)
Net income $1,623,832 $1,310,015 $1,753,072
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget for the month due to the success of the Van Halen concert that had been

originally scheduled to play the facility in April.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in consistent with budget overall. However, a trueup on the final commission due to the
Griffins for their season offset the gain realized by the Van Halen concert.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in consistent with forecast, and while exceeding budget overall for the fiscal year, was

consistent with prior year totals.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

----------------- CURRENT - - -~~~ ~vsmmmmommoce momecceecmcccee oY TDmmmmmmmmeeo oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 100,264 19,100 84,756 2,216,665 1,809,400 2,161,616
SERVICES INCOME <18,320> <18,577> <44,655> <625, 866> <660,113> <637,278>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 81,944 523 40,101 1,590,799 1,149,287 1,524,338
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE <5,904> 2,700 47,079 1,205,323 1,259,329 1,376,760
NOVELTY 6,133 0 4,580 191,015 242,505 211,775
OTHER ANCILLARY 1,040 1,628 15,545 39,636 39,912 59,333
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 1,270 4,328 67,204 1,435,974 1,541,746 1,647,868
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 83,214 4,851 107,305 3,026,773 2,691,033 3,172,207
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 228,144 199,587 305,239 2,532,661 2,395,000 2,506,635
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 311,358 204,438 412,544 5,559,434 5,086,033 5,678,842
INDIRECT EXPENSES )
EXECUTIVE 72,713 12,085 20,790 254,137 146,498 162,106
FINANCE 22,359 16,896 16,281 198,940 204,274 197,507
MARKETING 30,682 23,383 21,866 275,980 282,151 293,285
LUXURY SEATING 7,020 9,773 6,129 121,185 117,298 111,610
OPERATIONS 126,668 123,729 185,422 1,478,376 1,487,583 1,526,436
BOX OFFICE 12,012 9,965 12,619 141,439 119,613 141,956
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,459 3,314 3,304 43,898 39,856 45,543
OVERHEAD 78,789 89,889 129,919 1,421,647 1,378,745 1,447,327
INDIRECT EXPENSES 352,703 289,034 396,330 3,935,601 3,776,018 3,925,769
NET OPERATING INCOME <41,345> <84,596> 16,214 1,623,832 1,310,015 1,753,073
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 199,454 0 0 199,454
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 199,454 0 0 199,454

NET INCOME (LOSS) <41,345> <84,596> <183,240> 1,623,832 1,310,015 1,553,619



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

---------------- CURRENT-----==m--=seew== ===-we------=--YEAR TO DATE------~------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 9,983 0 1,212 281,685 108,000 510,842
Sponsorship Income 0 0 0 0 0 121,593
Labor Billed 750 0 2,650 22,559 13,540 26,792
Changeover Setup Billed 10,328 1,000 18,611 183,535 88,400 146,325
Stagehands Billed 24,208 1,000 65,412 721,323 415,350 537,690
Security Billed 7,406 300 14,762 165,274 131,000 172,229
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 5,146 700 9,177 127,094 101,830 126, 056
Box Office Billed 0 0 0 1,548 8,116 7,832
Ticketing Service Billed 4,783 0 1,110 105,554 197,200 90, 854
Utilities Billed <850> 0 2,025 14,330 0 12,275
City Police Fire Billed 1,050 672 1,225 18,437 10,972 14,630
EMT Medical Billed 1,363 0 1,475 23,210 19,100 23,509
Cleaning Billed 4,843 0 11,442 134,055 84,300 132,019
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 1,317 17,733 0 16,967
Telephone Billed 620 0 1,150 22,425 23,850 25,335
Damages Billed 0 0 [] 400 0 1,079
Other Production Billed 12,386 0 39,094 258,988 153,400 278,088
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 82,014 3,672 170,661 2,098,150 1,355,058 2,244,113
Advertising Expense 11,366 0 6,345 302,799 118,000 574,477
Sponsorship Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 1,653
Labor Wages 638 0 1,615 19,770 11,511 22,136
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 9,757 6,000 31,637 261,530 242,777 253,104
Stagehand Wages 23,039 977 74,485 750,360 439,256 563,226
Contracted Security Expense 12,899 2,600 17,736 318,495 244,790 320,721
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 8,276 5,800 12,581 273,519 263,270 297,916
Ticket Sellers Wages 0 0 0 1,316 0 6,841
Ticket Service Charge Expense 10,878 0 15,975 171,190 196,920 115,178
City Police Fire Expense 397 672 638 9,021 13,894 9,414
EMT Medical Expense 1,713 600 2,005 37,739 35,813 39,964
Contracted Cleaning Expense 7,353 5,600 9,606 251,431 281,686 235,610
Group Sales Commissions 1,738 1] 0 6,621 0 7,951
Allocated Telephone Expense 186 0 345 6,667 6,554 7,301
Production Expense 12,094 0 42,350 313,557 160,700 425,900
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 100,333 22,249 215,317 2,724,016 2,015,171 2,881,391

NET SERVICE INCOME <18,320> <18,577> <44,655> <625,866> <660,113> <637,278>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending June 30, 2008

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

totals

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
28 33 108,326 146,500 460,653 596,819
6 4 33,850 27,000 245,007 169,881
26 21 204,185 172,000 1,706,268 1,430,563
49 48 255,577 264,000 452,249 435,712
9 9 62,379 49,000 162,596 58,058
118 115 664,317 658,500 3,026,773 2,691,033
23.73% 28.70% 16.31% 22.25% 15.22% 22.18%
5.08% 3.48% 5.10% 4.10% 8.09% 6.31%
22.03% 18.26% 30.74% 26.12% 56.37% 53.16%
41.53% 41.74% 38.47% 40.09% 14.94% 16.19%
7.63% 7.83% 9.39% 7.44% 537% 2.16%
125 118 589630 678400 2204611 2494767



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending June 30, 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

3,687,461
343,295

111,506

4,142,261

835,709
456,022
517,423
1,843,633

3,662,787

(2,700,000)
891,626
1,620,284
677,565

489,475

4,142,261

4,142,261




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending June 30, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 59,054

Ticketing 85,025

Merchandise 4,524

Permanent Advertising -

Operating 194,692
Over 30 Days -
Over 60 Days -
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 343,295



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/08

----------------- CURRENT------=mwmmommmmon mmcmcmmmmmmmem e e =YD - - - mmmmmm o m e e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 68,991 63,480 58,537 735,906 761,848 716,357
Part-Time 6,179 5,837 4,347 89,280 70,000 83,827
Wages-Trade 75,634 69,901 105,504 1,089,374 838,834 953,047
Sales Commissions Group Sales 0 0 444 4,207 0 12,714
Auto Allowance 594 990 594 7,125 11,825 7,125
Auto Expense 300 0 300 3,600 0 3,600
Taxes & Benefits 27,024 40,077 84,537 431,824 481,177 500,404
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <38,258> <59, 025> <77,564> <974,716> <708,267> <798,814>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 140,464 121,260 176,698 1,386,599 1,455,417 1,478,260
Contracted Security 20,867 21,000 24,166 256,116 252,000 246,235
Contracted Cleaning 5,722 2,500 2,098 30,615 30,000 27,530
Other Contracted Services 13,899 300 315 53,171 3,600 20,533
Travel & Entertainment 1,810 862 2,580 23,013 10,300 16,943
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 571 7,500 0
Meetings & Conventions 1,193 350 509 7,284 11,700 4,037
Dues & Subscriptions 315 212 0 7,894 2,500 6,887
Employee Training 996 750 194 3,130 9,000 3,713
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 300 0 269
Computer Expense 10,193 5,413 8,617 78,866 65,000 73,312
Professional Fees 62,759 2,587 7,610 120,780 31,000 41,992
Marketing & Advertising 12,966 12,087 9,382 130,489 145,000 153,970
Box Office Expenses <837> 0 <9> <385> 0 <1,124>
Trash Removal 1,771 1,500 314 22,570 18,000 22,638
Equipment Rental 1,045 1,250 2,235 16,353 15,000 19,430
Landscaping 345 487 345 2,760 5,800 4,311
Exterminating 248 300 248 2,970 3,600 2,925
Cleaning 0 200 0 7,825 10,800 4,900
Repairs & Maintenance 14,928 16,174 30,720 281,141 194,000 217,375
Supplies 9,844 17,012 8,071 196,914 204,100 195,892
Bad Debt Expense 0 0 23,000 0 0 23,000
Bank Service Charges 774 750 491 8,961 9,000 5,999
Insurance 3,442 15,038 23,490 165,287 180,445 201,615
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 2,000 ] 3,000
Printing & Stationary 154 913 23 . 1,818 11,000 5,626
Office Supplies 1,756 1,000 1,122 16,211 12,000 17,623
Postage 1,484 1,000 1,823 14,334 12,000 15,133
Parking Expense 2,680 2,000 2,605 31,966 24,000 30,411
Telephone Long Distance 4,973 7,000 5,001 62,666 84,000 60,757
Utilities 26,262 46,313 55,195 891,626 855,800 913,830
Base Fee 12,838 12,775 12,500 154, 050 153,300 150,000
Letter of Credit Fee 0 0 0 394 0 0
Common Area Expense 0 <2,949> <2,669> <36,748> <35, 344> <33,951>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <186> <375> <345> <6,518> <4,500> <7,301>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 212,239 167,774 219,632 2,548,425 2,320,601 2,447,510

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 352,703 289,034 396,330 3,935,024 3,776,018 3,925,769




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,623,832 (463,806) 1,160,026 1,238,267
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,623,832 (463,806) 460,026 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,559,434 4,911,032 10,470,466 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 909,434 861,032 1,770,466 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 306,600 306,600 613,200 600,000

** [ncentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IILDb.i.

CE

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2008

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 26 543 569 569 -
ATTENDANCE 9,625 659,350 668,975 668,975 -
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 37,868 2,602,766 2,640,634 2,640,634 -
ANCILLARY REVENUE 33,315 2,353,017 2,386,332 2,386,332 -
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 71,183 4,955,783 5,026,966 5,026,966 -
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 12,922 197,578 210,500 210,500 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 84,105 5,153,361 5,237,466 5,237,466 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,250 163,512 175,762 175,762 -
FINANCE 16,647 205,654 222,301 222,301 -
MARKETING 3,452 102,359 105,811 105,811 -
OPERATIONS 143,751 1,324,663 1,468,414 1,468,414 -
EVENT SERVICES 82,660 882,510 965,170 965,170 -
BOX OFFICE 6,186 71,440 77,626 77,626 -
SALES 22,201 324,825 347,026 347,026 -
OVERHEAD 118,343 2,135,989 2,254,332 2,254,332 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 405,490 5,210,952 5,616,442 5,616,442 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (321,385) (57,591) (378,976) (378,976) -
INCENTIVE FEE 157,899 157,899 157,899 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (321,385) (215,490) (536,875) (536,875) -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments: P

DeVos Place started the new fiscal year a little slow as both Direct Event Income

and Ancillary Income fell below expecations. Most of the shortfall came from
no events being hosted in the Theater during the month and a Youth Festival
that did not end up using the Convention Center.




DE VYOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending July 31, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2007
Number of Events 26 22 33
Attendance 9,625 19,600 14,521
Direct Event Income $37,868 $69,988 $46,929
Ancillary Income 33,315 82,699 39,050
Other Income 12,922 17,542 9,432
Indirect Expenses (405,490) (397,793) (368,552)
Net Income ($321,385) ($227,564) ($273,141)
YTD YTD 2009 YTD 2009 YTD 2008

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 26 22 33
Attendance 9,625 19,600 14,521
Direct Event Income $37,868 $69,988 $46,929
Ancillary Income 33,315 82,699 39,050
Other Income 12,922 17,542 9,432
Indirect Expenses (405,490) (397,793) (368,552)
Net Income ($321,385) ($227,564) (8273,141)
EVENT INCOME

Direct Event income fell below expectations as no events were hosted in the theater and a Youth Festival
that was previously thought to have been firm ended up not taking place.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expecations as spending on Food & Beverage and Audio/Visual fell below
expectations. We are also taking internet in house, leading to some start up costs that also led to lower
than expected numbers overall for ancillary income.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




DeVos Place

Income Statement

For the Month Ending July 31, 2008

Current Month  Current Month

Curmrent Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $50,556 $0 $50,556 $58,313 $50,556 $0 $50,556 $58,313
Service Revenue 29,760 0 29,760 29,583 29,760 0 29,760 29,583
Service Expenses (42,448) 0 (42,448) (40,967) (42,448) 0 (42,448) (40,967)
Total Direct Event Income 37,868 L] 37,868 46,929 37,868 0 37,868 46,929
Ancillary income
F&B Concession 3,997 o] 3,997 1,394 3,997 0 3,997 1,394
F&B Catering 16,731 0 16,731 15,602 16,731 0 16,731 15,602
Booth Cleaning 3,000 0 3,000 6,367 3,000 0 3,000 6,367
Electrical Services 6,208 ] 6,208 4,279 6,208 0 6,208 4,279
Audio Visual 2,703 o] 2,703 5973 2,703 0 2,703 5,973
Intemet Services (4,489) 0 (4,489) 1,100 (4,489) 4] (4,489) 1,100
Equipment Rental 5,165 0 5,165 4,335 5,165 0 5,165 4,335
Total Ancitlary Income 33,315 0 33,315 39,050 33,315 0 33,315 39,050
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 9,885 0 9,885 4,032 9,885 0 9,885 4,032
Total Other Event Income 9,885 0 9,885 4,032 9,885 0 9,885 4,032
Total Event income 81,088 0 81,068 90,011 81,068 0 81,068 90,011
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 2,600 0 2,600 3,012 2,600 [v] 2,600 3,012
Other Income 437 0 437 2,388 437 0 437 2,388
Total Other Operating Income 3,037 0 3,037 5,400 3,037 0 3,037 5,400
Adjusted Gross Income 84,105 0 84,105 95,411 84,105 0 84,105 95,411
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 152,798 0 152,798 128,988 152,798 0 152,798 128,988
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 36,076 0 36,076 32,954 36,076 0 36,076 32,954
Labor Allocations to Events (40,779) 0 (40,779) (34,079) (40,779) 0 (40,779) (34,079)
Net Salaries and Benefits 148,095 ] 148,095 127,863 148,095 0 148,095 127,863
Contracted Services 31,402 0 31,402 24,835 31,402 0 31,402 24,835
General and Administrative 19,612 0 19,612 28,169 19,612 [+} 19,612 28,169
Operations 3,446 0 3,448 2,703 3,446 0 3.446 2,703
Repair and Maintenance 43,548 0 43,548 59,618 43,548 0 43,548 59,618
Operational Supplies 49,654 0 49,654 13,227 49,654 0 49,654 13,227
Insurance 11,192 0 11,192 14,257 11,192 0 11,192 14,257
Utilities 85318 0 85,318 85,380 85,318 (v} 85,318 85,380
SMG Management Fees 13,223 0 13,223 12,500 13,223 0 13,223 12,500
Total Operating Expenses 405,490 0 405,490 368,552 405,490 0 405,480 368,552
Net Income({Loss) From Operations (321,385) [} {321,385) (273,141) (321,385) 0 (321,385) (273,141)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (321,385) 0 (321,385) (273,141) (321,385) 0 (321,385) (273,141)




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended July 31, 2008

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 7 7 4,000 3,900 17,847 25,877
Consumer/Gated Shows 2 3 2,000 2,100 17,958 21,593
Devos Performance Hall - 2 - 2,600 - 18,164
Ballroom Exclusive 1 2 250 1,000 1,540 10,995
Other 16 8 3,375 29,200 33,838 76,058
GRAND TOTALS 26 22 9,625 38,800 71,183 152,687
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 26.92% 31.82% 41.56% 10.05% 25.07% 16.95%
Consumer/Gated Shows 7.69% 13.64% 20.78% 5.41% 25.23% 14.14%
Devos Performance Hall 0.00% 9.09% 0.00% 6.70% 0.00% 11.90%
Ballroom Exclusive 3.85% 9.09% 2.60% 2.58% 2.16% 7.20%

Other 61.54% 36.36% 35.06% 75.26% 47.54% 49.81%



DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash 729,359
Account Receivable 546,125
Prepaid Expenses 76,300
Total Current Assets 1,351,784
Total Assets 1,351,784

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 146,866
Accrued Expenses 415,598
Deferred Income 69,432
Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits 680,402
Total Current Liabilities 1,312,298
Other Liabilities
Equity
CY Exp. Paid Directly by City 78,093
Retained Eamings 282,778
Current Year Equity (321,385)
Total Equity 39,486

Total Liabilities and Equity 1,351,784



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended July 31, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

71,905
32,281
3,000
4,123
267,091

87,207

65,384

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

546,125



SALARIES AND WAGES
Salaries Administration
Changeover Labor - Wages
Laborers - Wages
Decorator Labor - Wages
Booth Cleaning - Wages
Stagehands - Wages
Box Office/Ticket Sellers-PT
Ushers & Ticket Takers-PT
Commission
Auto Allowance

Total Salaries and Wages

PAYROLL TAXES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Benefits
401 (k)
Union Expenses

Total Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits

LABOR ALLOCATED TO EVENTS
Allocated Administrative-Event
Allocated Stagehands-Event
Allctd Ushers&Tckt Tkrs-Evt.
Allocated Utilities

Total Labor Allocated to Events

NET SALARIES AND BENEFITS

DeVos Place
Indirect Expenses Detail
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008
Total Company Indirect Expenses

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Actual Variance Prior Year
$70,071 $70,071 $70,071 $70,071
9,293 9,293 9,293 9,293
3,541 3,541 3,541 3,541
11,910 11,910 11,910 11,910
22,934 22,934 22,934 22,934
28,668 28,668 28,668 28,668
1,521 1,521 1,521 1,521
2,066 2,066 2,066 2,066
574 574 574 574
2,221 2,221 2,221 2,221
152,799 152,799 152,799 152,799 0
11,299 11,299 11,299 11,299
17,566 17,566 17,566 17,566
3,701 3,701 3,701 3,701
3,511 3.511 3,511 3,511
36,077 36,077 36,077 36,077 0
(19,440) (19,440) (19,440) (19,440)
(16,013) (16,013) (16,013) (16,013)
(215) (215) (215) (215)
(226) (226) (226) (226)
(35,894) (35,894) (35,894) (35,894) 0
152,982 152,982 152,982 152,982 1]




DeVos Place
Indirect Expenses Detail
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008
Total Company Indirect Expenses

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Contracted Security 22,797 22,797 22,797 22,797
Contracted Cleaning 8,381 8,381 8,381 8,381
Contracted Armor Car Service 224 224 224 224
Total Contracted Services 31,402 0 31,402 0 31,402 V] 31,402

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Annual Audit Fees 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250
Professional Fees - Other 230 230 230 230
Bank Service Charges 1,632 1,632 1,632 1,632
Meals & Entertainment 388 388 388 388
Meetings & Conventions 5,602 5,602 5,602 5,602
Dues & Subscriptions 2,312 2,312 2,312 2,312
Postage 254 254 254 254
Office Supplies 122 122 122 122
Printing & Stationary 647 647 647 647
Parking Expense 2,014 2,014 2,014 2,014
Advertising - Sales & Mktg 1,655 1,655 1,655 1,655
Licenses & Fees 240 240 240 240
Over & Short (7 (7) (7) (7)
Computer Expense 2,272 2,272 2,272 2,272
Total General and Administrative Expenses 19,611 0 19,611 0 19,611 0 19,611
OPERATIONS EXPENSES
Trash Removal 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116
Landscaping 1,062 1,062 1,062 1,062
Equipment Rental 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268
Total Operations Expenses 3,446 0 3,446 0 3,446 0 3,446
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Gen. Building Repairs & Maint. 10,251 10,251 10,251 10,251
Machinery & Equipment 108 108 108 108
Maintenance Agreements 33,189 33,189 33,189 33,189
Total Repairs and Maintenance 43,548 (¢} 43,548 0 43,548 0 43,548
OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES
General Building Supplies 42,097 42,097 42,097 42,097
Bulbs & Lamps 3,154 3,154 3,154 3,154
Theatrical 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833
Fuel Propane 97 97 97 97
Small Tools 780 780 780 780
First Aid 542 542 542 542
Paint 434 434 434 434
Janitorial 236 236 236 236
Uniforms 104 104 104 104
Signage 377 377 377 377
Total Operational Supplies 49,654 0 49,654 0 49,654 0 49,654
INSURANCE
General Liability Insurance 1,665 1,665 1,665 1,665
Property Insurance 9,526 9,526 9,526 9,526
Total Insurance 11,191 0 11,191 0 11,191 0 11,191
UTILITIES
Electricity 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000
PACT - Steam Heat 593 593 593 593
Telephone 7,226 7,226 7,226 7,226
Water & Sewage 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500
Total Utilities 85,319 0 85,319 0 85,319 0 85,319
SMG MANAGEMENT FEE
Base Fee 13,223 13,223 13,223 13,223
Total SMG Management Fee 13,223 0 13,223 0 13,223 [+} 13,223

Total Department Expenses 410,376 0 410,376 0 410,376 0 410,376




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,413,711 (378,977) 1,034,734 1,160,026
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,413,711 (378,977) 334,734 460,026

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 157,899 157,899 315,798 306,600
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,327,210 5,237,438 10,564,648 10,470,466

Benchmark Revenue 4,700,000 4,100,000 8,800,000 8,700,000

Revenue Excess 627,210 1,137,438 1,764,648 1,770,466

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 315,798 306,600
Total SMG Management Fee 311,199 311,199 631,596 613,200

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2008

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IIL.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET

FYE FYE VARIANCE
1 117 118 118 -
6,954 659,046 666,000 666,000 -
20,772 1,258,419 1,279,191 1,279,191 -
24,678 1,573,341 1,698,019 1,598,019 -
45,450 2,831,760 2,877,210 2,877,210 -
152,845 2,297,155 2,450,000 2,450,000 -
198,295 5,128,915 5,327,210 5,327,210 -
16,376 165,122 171,498 171,498 -
15,777 196,784 212,561 212,561 -
15,498 260,460 275,958 275,958 -
136,814 1,436,487 1,573,301 1,573,301 -
7.821 112,556 120,377 120,377 -
5,583 111,716 117,298 117,298 -
4,255 35,601 39,856 39,856 -
84,142 1,318,508 1,402,650 1,402,650 -
286,266 3,627,233 3,913,499 3,913,499 -
(87,971) 1,501,682 1,413,711 1,413,711 -

157,899 (157,899)

(87,971) 1,501,682 1,255,812 1,413,711 (157,899)

Van Andel Arena started the fiscal year a little slow with only one concert being

hosted during the month. The first quarter of the fiscal year should end up

consistent with both budget and last years performance as August and September

activity will pick up.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31,2008

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending July 31, 2008
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2007
Number of Events 1 1 4
Attendance 6,954 8,000 31,753
Direct Event Income $20,772 $36,468 $118,924
Ancillary Income 24,678 33,658 124,702
Other Income 152,845 204,167 208,717
Indirect Expenses (232,261) (298,250) (252,238)
Net Income ($33,965) ($23,957) $200,105
YTD YTD 2009 YTD 2009 YTD 2008

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 1 1 4
Attendance 6,954 8,000 31,753
Direct Event Income $20,772 $36,468 $118,924
Ancillary Income 24,678 33,658 124,702
Other Income 152,845 204,167 208,717
Indirect Expenses (232,261) (298,250) (252,238)
Net Income ($33,967) ($23,957) $200,105

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income fell short of budget as sales for the Foo Fighters concert fell below expectations.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expectations during the month. Per Caps for Foo Fighters on both Concessions
and Merchandise exceeded their last visit, however, with the lower than expected attendance led to the

shortfall on revenue overall.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales

Total Anclllary Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Advertising
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilittes

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Cument Month  Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$13,405 $0 $13,405 $170,528 ($18,260) $0 ($18,260) $170,528
50,138 0 50,138 303,576 50,138 [ 50,138 303,576
(42,771) 0 42,771) (292,648) (42,771) 0 (42,771) (292,648)
20,772 0 20,772 181,458 (10,893) 0 (10,893) 181,456
19,606 0 19,6068 91,184 19,606 0 19,608 91,184
1,638 0 1,638 7.964 1,638 0 1638 7,964
3.435 0 3,435 25,554 3,435 0 3,435 25,554
24,679 0 24,679 124,702 24,679 0 24,679 124,702
45,451 0 45,451 306,158 13,786 0 13,786 306,158
93,325 0 93,325 91,241 93,325 0 93,325 91,241
52,500 0 52,500 45,000 52,500 0 52,500 45,000
7,020 0 7.020 9,942 7,020 0 7,020 9,942
152,845 0 152,845 146,183 152,845 0 162,845 146,183
198,296 0 198,296 452,341 166,631 0 166,631 452,341
117,429 0 117,429 176,215 117,429 0 117,429 176,215
26,018 0 26,018 42,615 26,018 [ 26,018 42,615
(32,428) 0 (32,428) (130,450) (32,428) 0 (32,428) (130,450)
111,019 0 111,019 88,380 111,019 0 111,019 88,380
35,834 0 35,834 25,809 35,834 0 35,834 25,809
20,199 0 20,199 20,030 20,199 0 20,199 20,030
5,524 0 5,524 2,910 5,524 0 5,524 2,910
16,577 0 16,577 22,422 16,577 0 16,577 22,422
22,357 0 22,357 24,329 22,357 [¢] 22,357 24,329
3,855 0 3,855 9,199 3,855 0 3,855 9,199
57,679 0 57,679 46,082 57,679 0 57,679 46,082
13,223 0 13,223 12,500 13,223 0 13,223 12,500
286,267 0 286,267 251,661 286,267 0 286,267 251,661
(87,971) 0 (87,971) 200,680 (119,636) 0 (119,636) 200,680




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending July 31, 2008

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
1 1 6,954 8,000 45,451 70,126
1 1 6,954 8,000 45451 70,126
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending July 31, 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

3,214,075
1,222,247

99,309

66,128
468,611
1,837,253
1,887,625

(100,000)
54,006
(87,971)
409,979

4,635,630

4,259,617

276,014

4,535,630

4,535,630




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending July 31, 2008

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

90,036
212,867
3,215
879,839

22,840

13,450

1,222,247



Current Month Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Indirect Expenses Detail
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008
Total Company Indirect Expenses

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
SALARIES AND WAGES

Salaries Administration $58,870 $8,188 $50,682 $58,870 $8,188 $50,682

Administrative: Event 871 871 871 871

Changeover Labor - Wages 14,507 14,507 14,507 14,507

Laborers - Wages 1,943 1,943 1,943 1,943

Decorator Labor - Wages 4,904 4,904 4,904 4,904

On Call General - Part-Time 18,542 18,542 18,542 18,542

Booth Cleaning - Wages 13,055 13,055 13,055 13,055

Box OfficelTicket Sellers-PT 2,572 2,572 2,572 2,572

Commission 1,271 1,271 1,271 1,271

Auto Allowance 894 210 684 894 210 684

Total Salaries and Wages 117,429 8,398 109,031 0 117,429 8,398 109,031 0
PAYROLL TAXES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes 7,459 890 6,569 7.459 890 6,569

Benefits 15,642 941 14,701 15,642 941 14,701

401 (k) 2,916 313 2,603 2916 313 2,603

Total Payroll Taxes and Employt 26,017 2,144 23,873 0 26,017 2,144 23,873 0
LABOR ALLOCATED TO EVENTS

Allocated Administrative-Event (14,661) (14,661) (14,661) (14,661)

Allocated Stagehands-Event (12,082) (12,082) (12,082) (12,082)

Allctd BO/ Tckt Sellers-Event (1,850) (1,850) (1,850) (1,850)

Allocated Utilities (150) (150) (150) (150)

Total Labor Allocated to Events (28,743) 0 (28,743) 0 (28,743) 0 (28,743) 0

NET SALARIES AND BENEFIT 114,703 10,542 104,161 0 114,703 10,542 104,161 0

CONTRACTED SERVICES

Contracted Security 24,339 24,339 24,339 24,339

Contracted Cleaning 11,123 11,123 11,123 11,123

Contracted Armor Car Service 372 372 372 372

Total Contracted Services 35,834 0 35,834 0 35,834 0 35,834 0
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Annual Audit Fees 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250

Professional Fees - Other 2,427 2,917 (490) 2,427 2,917 (490)

Bank Service Charges 532 532 532 532

Meals & Entertainment 931 500 431 931 500 431

Meetings & Conventions 3,155 3,155 3,155 3,155

Dues & Subscriptions 392 208 184 392 208 184

Postage 392 392 392 392

Office Supplies 222 222 222 222

Printing & Stationary 239 239 239 239

Parking Expense 2,680 2,680 2,680 2,680

Advertising - Sales & Mktg 204 204 204 204

Licenses & Fees 275 275 275 275

Over & Short (525) (525) (525) (525)

Computer Expense 7,022 7,022 7,022 7,022

Employee Training 5 5 5 5

Total General and Administrative 20,201 3,625 16,576 0 20,201 3,625 16,576




OPERATIONS EXPENSES
Trash Removal
Landscaping
Exterminating
Equipment Rental

Total Operations Expenses

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Gen. Building Repairs & Maint.
Machinery & Equipment
Maintenance Agreements
Luxury Seating

Total Repairs and Maintenance

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES
General Building Supplies
Bulbs & Lamps
Fuel Propane
Small Tools
First Aid
HVAC
Janitorial

Total Operational Supplies
INSURANCE

Auto Insurance

General Liability Insurance

Property Insurance

Total Insurance
UTILITIES

Electricity

PACT - Steam Heat

Telephone

Water & Sewage

Total Utilities

SMG MANAGEMENT FEE
Base Fee

Total SMG Management Fee

Total Department Expenses

Current Month  Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Indirect Expenses Detail
For the Month Ending July 31, 2008
Total Company Indirect Expenses

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
579 579 579 579
345 345 345 345
248 248 248 248
4,353 4,353 4,353 4,353
5,525 0 5,625 0 5,525 0 5,525 0
5,165 5,165 5,165 5,165
418 418 418 418
9,198 9,198 9,198 9,198
1,796 1,796 1,796 1,796
16,577 0 16,577 0 16,577 0 16,577 0
1,656 1,656 1,656 1,656
271 271 271 271
304 304 304 304
221 221 221 221
409 409 409 409
14,927 14,927 14,927 14,927
4,568 4,568 4,568 4,568
22,356 0 22,356 0 22,356 0 22,356 0
247 247 247 247
1,108 1,108 1,108 1,108
2,499 2,499 2,499 2,499
3,854 0 3,854 0 3,854 0 3,854 0
36,237 36,237 36,237 36,237
13,581 13,581 13,581 13,581
4,828 4,828 4,828 4,828
3,032 3,032 3,032 3,032
57,678 0 57,678 0 57,678 0 57,678
13,223 13,223 13,223 13,223
13,223 0 13,223 0 13,223 0 13,223
289,951 14,167 275,784 0 289,951 14,167 275,784




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,413,711 (378,977) 1,034,734 1,160,026
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,413,711 (378,977) 334,734 460,026

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 157,899 157,899 315,798 306,600
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,327,210 5,237,438 10,564,648 10,470,466

Benchmark Revenue 4,700,000 4,100,000 8,800,000 8,700,000

Revenue Excess 627,210 1,137,438 1,764,648 1,770,466

Incentive Fee ** 153,300 153,300 315,798 306,600
Total SMG Management Fee 311,199 311,199 631,596 613,200

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Llew Chamberlin

L
VAN ANDEL

ARENA

e
to
a

Item II1.b.11.

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: August 2008
Re: CAA June Financial Statements

| Arena®

The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
June 30, 2008:

1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating
Beginning Balance $505,240.86 $21,716,133.91
Cleared Transactions 39,238.63 72.350.99
Cleared Balance 544,569.49 21,788,484.90
Uncleared Transactions -9.261.16 0.00
Ending Balance $535.308.33 $21,788,484.90

¢ Interest earnings continue to exceed budgeted expectations.

e The land lease line item is under budget due to timing of the payments.

o The personal services line item is under budget because the expense
reimbursement from the Kent County Parks Foundation for administrative services
is not considered.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at
742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.

DeVos Ploce®
303 Monroe Ave.

2

, M1 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, M! 49503- 2233
616.742.6500
L6197 Fax 616.742.6590




12:06 PM

07/28/08
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG
1050 - Operations - Cash

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accounts Receivable
1300 - Prepaid Expenses
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Equip
Vehicles

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales
2220 - Advance deposits
2500 - Deferred facility income
2700 - Entertainment Equipment Reserve

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Jun 30, 08

4,068,974.10
535,308.33

4,604,282.43

21,788,484.90
1,424,324.17
161,220.35
-3,850,000.07

19,524,029.35

24,128,311.78

280,652.31
379,940.52
43,914.30

704,507.13

24,832,818.91

55,873.45

598,094.17

653,967.62

803,918.61
1,993,226.73
291,205.00
906,555.74
80,000.00

4,074,906.08
4,728,873.70

4,728,873.70

' 37,035,584.45
-14,931,143.70
-2,000,495.54

20,103,945.21

24,832,818.91

Item IILDb.ii.



12:07 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

07/28/08
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6500 - DID Assessment

6600 - SMG Incentive Fees

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July 2007 through June 2008

Jul '07 - Jun 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
907,159.21 1,000,000.00 -92,840.79 90.7%
81,007.00 126,408.00 -45,401.00 64.1%
890,062.00 862,912.00 27,150.00 103.1%
730.50
1,878,958.71 1,989,320.00 -110,361.29 94.5%
30,523.98 30,000.00 523.98 101.7%
13,989.30 35,000.00 -21,010.70 40.0%
44,513.28 65,000.00 -20,486.72 68.5%
102,642.07 159,500.00 -56,857.93 684.4%
92,306.32 90,000.00 2,306.32 102.6%
304,877.43 365,243.00 -60,365.57 83.5%
499.09
634.90
20,258.00 21,000.00 -742.00 96.5%
422.24 10,000.00 -9,577.76 4.2%
188.34 5,000.00 -4,811.66 3.8%
22,002.57 36,000.00 -13,997.43 61.1%
4,219.20
516,593.17 689,000.00 -172,406.83 75.0%
27,850.37 35,000.00 -7,149.63 79.6%
1,165,458.06 1,232,000.00 -66,541.94 94.6%
12,940.87 18,000.00 -5,059.13 71.9%
1,035,116.55 1,094,500.00 -59,383.45 94.6%
118,738.41 112,500.00 6,238.41 105.5%
2,332,253.89 2,457,000.00 -124,746.11 94.9%
51,350.58 51,071.00 279.58 100.5%
300,000.00 306,600.00 -6,600.00 97.8%
60,755.60 85,567.00 -24,811.40 71.0%
20,089.77 19,515.00 574.77 102.9%
80,845.37 105,082.00 -24,236.63 76.9%
3,879,454.25 4,359,496.00 -480,041.75 89.0%
-2,000,495.54 -2,370,176.00 369,680.46 84.4%




12:08 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
07128108 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
July 2007 through June 2008

Accrual Basis

Jul '07 - Jun 08 Jul *'086 - Jun 07 $ Change % Change
Income
4040 - Private Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4500 - Interest on Investments 907,159.21 1,220,784.47 -313,625.26 -25.7%
4530 - Facility Operations 0.00 9,598,651.00 -9,598,651.00 -100.0%
4540 - Land Lease 81,007.00 123,871.00 -42,864.00 -34.6%
4545 - Parking Revenues 890,062.00 900,255.74 -10,193.74 1.1%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 730.50 789,311.00 -788,580.50 -89.9%
Total Income 1,878,858.71 12,632,873.21 -10,763,914.50 -85.1%
Expense
8000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 30,523.98 27,730.03 2,793.95 . 101%
6040 - Legal Services 13,989.30 2424164 -10,252.34 -42.3%
Total 6000 : Professional Services 44,513.28 51,971.67 -7,458.39 -14.4%
8060 - Other Contractual Services 102,642.07 2,093,513.30 -1,980,871.23 -95.1%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 92,306.32 83,781.05 8,525.27 10.2%
6068 - Parking Management 304,877.43 348,896.36 -44,018.93 -12.6%
6070 - Facility Management Fees 0.00 370,736.00 -370,736.00 -100.0%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 499.09 464.05 35.04 7.6%
6020 - Computer Services 634.90 288.00 335.90 112.3%
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 20,258.00 19,196.86 1,061.14 5.5%
6110 - Meeting Expense 422.24 294.42 127.82 43.4%
6120 - Supplies 188.34 481,645.89 -481,457.55 -100.0%
6140 - Printing and Binding 0.00 4,470.00 -4,470.00 -100.0%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 22,002.57 506,370.22 -484,367. 65 -95.7%
8125 - Transfer to Construction Acct 0.00 1,140,783.30 -1,140,783.30 -100.0%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 4,219.20 743,546.00 -739,326.80 -99.4%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 516,593.17 364,311.43 162,281.74 41.8%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 27,850.37 52,993.18 -25,142.01 -47.5%
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 1,165,458.06 1,257,055.53 -91,597.47 -1.3%
6310 - Natural Gas 12,940.87 11,787.66 1,153.21 9.8%
6320 - Steam 1,035,116.55 1,125,209.23 -90,092.68 -8.0%
6340 - Water & Sewer 118,738.41 109,547.01 9,191.40 8.4%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 2,332,253.89 2,503,599.43 -171,345.54 -6.8%
6500 - DID Assessment 51,350.58 50,298.90 1,051.68 21%
6570 - Depreciation Expense 0.00 151,521.64 -1561,521.64 -100.0%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 300,000.00 229,259.00 70,741.00 30.9%
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 60,755.60 3,324,742.22 -3,263,986.62 -98.2%
8030 - Employee Benefits 20,089.77 21,527.41 -1,437.64 6.7%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 80,845.37 3,346,269.63 -3,265,424.26 -97.6%
Total Expense 3,879,454.25 12,037,851.11 -8,158,396.86 -67.8%
Net Income -2,000,495.54 595,022.10 -2,595,517.64 -436.2%




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Llew Chamberlin

|

VAN ANDEL
ARENA
IR

4 B

Van Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West
Grand Rapids,
616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax

Item IIl.b.ii.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: August 2008
Re: CAA July Financial Statements

M| 49503-2601

The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
July 31, 2008:

1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating
Beginning Balance $544,569.49 $21,716,133.91
Cleared Transactions -6,069.02 72.350.99
Cleared Balance 550,638.51 21,788,484.90
Uncleared Transactions -6,170.70 0.00
Ending Balance $544.467.81 $21,788.484.90

e The summary for the Kent County Operating account remains unchanged
inasmuch as the monthly fund ledger has not been received, and, likewise, the
interest on investments line item is affected.

e Land lease is over budget due to receipt of March-June, 2008 and fiscal year 2006

reconciliation payments.

Parking revenues are under budget due to timing of payments.

Pedestrian safety is under budget because no invoices have been received.

Parking management is under budget due to timing of invoices.

The actual amount for employee wages will exceed the budget amount because the

line item has been credited $25,000 for the Kent County Parks Foundation

reimbursement.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at

742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.
DEVOSPLACE

DeVos Places®

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503- 2233
6. 7 2.

[oNe 3
OO



2:35 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

08/13/08 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG
1050 - Operations - Cash

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accounts Receivable
1300 - Prepaid Expenses
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Buildings & Structures

Equip
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Equip
Vehicles
Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities

Jul 31, 08

4,068,974.10
544,467.81

4,613,441.91

21,788,484.90
1,424,324.17
161,220.35
-3,950,000.07

19,424,029.35

24,037,471.26

-41,778.69
322,431.00

280,652.31

-589,296.08
969,236.60

379,940.52
43,914.30

704,507.13

24,741,978.39

99,734.92
598,094.17

2200 -
2210 -
2220 -
2500 -
2700 -

Accrued Expenses

Advance Ticket Sales

Advance deposits

Deferred facility income
Entertainment Equipment Reserve

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings

Net Income
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

697,829.09

803,918.61
1,993,226.73
291,205.00
906,555.74
80,000.00

4,074,906.08

4,772,73517

4,772,735.17

37,035,584.45
-16,934,027.89
-132,313.34

19,969,243.22

24,741,978.39

Item IIL.b.ii.



2:57 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

08/13/08
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July 2008
Jul 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
379.66 61,833.00 -61,453.34 0.6%
42,354.00 11,768.00 30,586.00 359.9%
11,319.50 77,350.00 -66,030.50 14.6%
220.00
54,273.16 150,951.00 -96,677.84 36.0%
1,135.56 3,166.00 -2,030.44 35.9%
678.55 2,916.00 -2,237.45 23.3%
1,814.11 6,082.00 -4,267.89 29.8%
26,695.33 24,083.00 2,612.33 110.8%
0.00 7,269.00 -7,269.00 0.0%
0.00 23,457.00 -23,457.00 0.0%
0.00 833.00 -833.00 0.0%
0.00 416.00 -416.00 0.0%
0.00 1,249.00 -1,249.00 0.0%
0.00 9,416.00 -9,416.00 0.0%
50,714.10 153,675.00 -102,960.90 33.0%
0.00 3,750.00 -3,750.00 0.0%
74,985.80 41,782.00 33,203.80 179.5%
309.19 1,011.00 -701.81 30.6%
14,738.36 19,021.00 -4,282.64 77.5%
9,390.65 9,375.00 15.65 100.2%
99,424.00 71,189.00 28,235.00 139.7%
6,728.53 3,383.00 3,345.53 198.9%
1,210.43 1,705.00 -494.57 71.0%
7,938.96 5,088.00 2,850.96 156.0%
186,586.50 305,258.00 -118,671.50 61.1%
-132,313.34 -154,307.00 21,993.66 85.7%




2:43PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

08/13/08
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6110 - Meeting Expense

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

July 2008
Jul 08 Jul 07 $ Change % Change
379.66 1,089.54 -709.88 -65.2%
42,354.00 4,922.00 37,432.00 760.5%
11,319.50 10,203.50 1,116.00 10.9%
220.00 0.00 220.00 100.0%
54,273.16 16,215.04 38,058.12 234.7%
1,135.56 -1,525.00 2,660.56 174.5%
678.55 0.00 678.55 100.0%
1,814.11 -1,625.00 3,339.11 219.0%
26,695.33 -697.05 27,392.38 3,929.8%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 466.09 -466.09 -100.0%
0.00 -28.98 28.98 100.0%
0.00 437.1 -437.11 -100.0%
50,714.10 102,558.30 -51,844.20 -50.6%
0.00 4,735.53 -4,735.53 -100.0%
74,985.80 36,237.42 38,748.38 106.9%
309.19 590.23 -281.04 -47.6%
14,738.36 11,206.92 3,531.44 31.5%
9,390.65 8,761.66 628.99 7.2%
99,424.00 56,796.23 42,627.77 751%
6,728.53 1,632.40 5,096.13 312.2%
1,210.43 650.22 560.21 86.2%
7,938.96 2,282.62 5,656.34 247.8%
186,586.50 164,587.74 21,998.76 13.4%
-132,313.34 -148,372.70 16,059.36 10.8%




Item IILb.iii.

TCOUNTY

7
SED

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTIAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Finance Committee
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Convention
Argpa Date: August 14,2008
Authority
Re: Renewal of D&O and Liability Insurance
Steven Heacock,
Chairman
Birgit Klohs
lif Charl . . . . .
g;ryc M;::mey The CAA’s insurance policy is set to expire August 23, 2008. Attached is the insurance

renewal proposal prepared by IBEX Insurance Agency. The proposal is basically the
same terms and conditions as the expiring policy. The renewal premium is $20,623 and
the expiring premium was $20,258.

George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli

tew Chamberlin

Inasmuch as coverage must be bound on or before August 24, 2008, I am requesting
Finance Committee approval to renew the coverage.

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

Van Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West

o
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, M 503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590




FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Phil Van Dyke, Risk Coordinator

Kent County Adminisiration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W. Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2289
Phone: (616) 623-7668 o Fax: (616) 632-7675 » e-mail: Phil.VanDyka@kentcounty.org

August 13, 2008

Mr. Bob White D R“AF T

Finance Director
Kent County Fiscal Services

RE: Convention/Arena Authority
Insurance Renewal Proposal

Insurer: Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA)
Effective Date: 8-23-08

The insurance policy for the Convention/Arena Authority is set to expire on August 23, 2008.

Attached is the renewal proposal prepared by the IBEX Insurance Agency.
Expiring premium $20,258
Renewal premium $20,623

Coverages Limit Deductible
General liability $15,000,000 $0

Public Officials Liability - E& O $15,000,000 $0
Crime/ Faithful Performance $ 1,000,000 $0

Auto physical damage ACV $250
Auto liability - No-Fault per statute $0
Limited Terrorism Liability $ 5,000,000 80

Please let me know if the CAA approves this renewal proposal. I will then notify the IBEX
Insurance Agency to bind coverage.

Let me know if you have any questions.

AT T, D

Phil Van Dyke
Risk Coordinator
cc Steve Duarte Susan Waddell
Deputy Director of Fiscal Services Conventior/Arena Authority

7.4 ARLOON AINNOY INTY - SINTANIL T¥NRTA WAZ7 b Q007 F1 B0y



Table I
Member Déeductibles and Seif Insured Retentions

COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE SELF INSURED
RETENTION
Liability None State Poo] Member
Vehicle Ph}'ﬁiod Dmﬂge $250 / Vehicle N/A
Property and Crime NIA
Sewnge System Overflow INIA NA

The Member must satisfy all deductibles before any payments are made from the Member's SIR or by
MMRMA,

The Grand Rapids-IKent County C.A.A. is afforded all coverages provided by MMRMA, except as
listed below:

1.Property and Crime
2.Sewage System Overflow
3

4
All costs including damages and allocated loss adjustment expenses are on an occurrence basis and
must be paid first from the Member's SIR. The Membey's SIR and deductibles must be satisfied fully

before MMRMA will be responsible for any payments. The most MMRMA will pay is the
difference between the Member's STR and the Limits of Coverage stated-in the Coverage Qverview,

Grand Rapids-Kent County C.A.A. agrees to maintain, at all times, on account with MMRMA,
sufficient funds to pay its SIR obligations, The Member agrees to abide by all MMRMA rules,
teguliations, and adminjstrative proceciures pertaining to the Membet's SIR.

C. MMRMA Obiigations - Payments and Limits of Coverage

After the Member's SIR and deductibles have been satisfied, MMRMA will be responsible for
paying all remaining costs, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss adjustment
expenses to the Limits of Coverage stated in Table II, The Limits of Coverage include the
Member's SIR payments. :

The most MMRMA will pay, under any circumstances, which includes payments from the Member's

SIR, per oocurrence, is shown in the Limits of Covergge column in Table Il The Limits of Coverage
includes allocated loss adjustment expenaes,

8/23/08 to 8/23/09 Page 2 of 10 Grend Rapida-Kent Coutity C.A.A,

b4 6619°0N ATNNOD INAY - SIHTA¥IS TVISTH WdEC:v 800C ‘€1 9NV



80 wme W/ VW RN P e nwwe 11 wwer wr o

D. Contribution for MMRMA Participation
Grand Rapids-Kent County C.A.A,
Period: August 23, 2008 to Angust 23, 2009

Coverages per Member Coverage Overview: A 20,623
TOTAL NS: § 20,623

E. List of Addendn

I, Sewer Bxclusion..
2. Limited Liability Coverage for Terrorism
3, Limited Property Coverage for Terrorism

Accepted by:
Grand Rapids-Kenf County C.A.A. MMRMA
Maember Representative MMRMA Representutive
Date Date
8/23/08 10 823/09 Page4.0f 10 Grand Rapids-Kent County C.AA.

¢ ‘4 AALOON ATNNOD INIY - SIDTANIAS TWASTA WavZ:v 8007 °E1L "OnY



. Any act of bio-terrorism; or

Any act of nuclear terrorism; or

Any act of chemical terrorism; or

. Any act designed to release germs that cause epidemical discase.

e Oo®

For the purpose of this Addendum, an act of bio-terrorism, nuclear terrorism, chemical
terrorism and/or designed to release germs that cause epidemioal diseage shall mean en
act, Inoluding but not limited to the use of force or violencs and/or the threat thereof,
involving or, resulting in the release of biological or chemical agents or nuclear materials
or gernia, by an person or group(s) of persons, whether acting along or on behalf of or in
conuection with any organization(s) or govermnent(s), apparently committed for
politieal, religious, ideological or similar purposes inoluding the intention to influence
any government and/or to put the public, or any section of the, public, in fear.

Thiz Addandum algo excludes logs, damage, cost or expense of whalsoever nature

directly or indirectly cavsed by, resulting from or in connection with any action taken in

controlling, preventing, suppressing or in any way relating to (a). (b), (c) and/or (d)
above,

8/23/08 to 8/23/09 Page 7 of 10 Grand Raplds:Kent County C.A.A.

8 'd 6619 °ON ALNAOD INIX - SIDIA¥IS T¥ISIS NdvZ:v 8007 €1 DNV



Saction 3
Definitions ) .
. (1) “Employes” means a person while in the employ of the member during the pertod of membership,

Section 4

Conditions ‘ .

(1) 4n case a loss is alleged to have baen causad to the member through acts or defaults by an employae and the
member shall be unable to designate the specific employee causing such loes, the member shall neverthsless
have the benefit of this provision provided that the evidance submitted reasonably establishes that the loss was
in fact caused by an employae through such acts or defaults and provided, further, that regardless of the
number of such employees concerned or implicated In such loss, the aggregate liability for any such logs shall
not exceed the limit of Hability.

(2) The limtt of liability shall not be cumulative from year to ye.ar.

(3) This provision shall be deemed to be cancelled as to any employee:
(@) Immediately upon discovery by the member of any act on the part of such employee which would con-
stitute a liebility under this provision covering such employes; or
{b) Upon the death, resignation or removal of such amployee; or
(¢) Upon termination of membership in the Authority.

Should the member indicated below withdraw from the Authorlts} prior to the expiration date shown, the Authority shall notify the
certificate holder In writing thirty (30) deiys in advance of.such withdsawal, but failure to ‘mail such notice shall impose no
obligation or liability of any kind :upon the Authority.

Certificate Holder: Meml;e::
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena

Explration Date of Membership
August 23, 2006

R 7 =

Authorized Representative

Continuous Until Cancelled

2/1/86

0L "4 AALY "ON ATNNOD NI - SIDTA¥IS VIS Ndag:v 800 €L BNy



Item IIL.b.iv.

800¢ ‘121

snbny
sjuelnsuo) pue SJUBJUNODDY
d711 ‘vewpias 0dd

800 ‘0 @unf pepud JesA 8y} o} ueld pny
a9)}lwwo) adueul ayj} o} Juoday

Ai110y}ny eUBIY/UOIJUSAUOD
AQjunon Jud)] - spidey puelis

oagl



77 T 0]
‘sinok Ainay Assp

‘suoljsanb
Aue Jamsue 0} pue uejd Jno M3IA3I 0) 800Z ‘L Z Isnbny uo noA yim Buiaawi 0} pJEMIO) 400| PUB YYD 94} 0} 80IAISS JO 8q O} pasea|d a1e 9\

W0 8y} O} JUBAS|S] BB 9ASI[8]
am jey; seAloe Alojeinbas pue Buiodal [eioueuy Juaund Jo Sjepdn Ue UOREULOjUl 1noA 1o} papnjoul aAeYy pue ‘siayew Buipodal [eloueuly
S.\yv9 oy Jo pauuoul Ajejendoidde jdoy SI SSRILULIOD SOUBULY S} Je} SINSUS OS[E [IM SM ‘uonippe U] "seinpaooid [euonippe S3euspun
0} sn Jsenba) Aew sapIuWo) oueuld 3yl yoiym ui sease Aue Buikjpuspr pue Ayeusjew pue su Jo sanssi sn ypm Buissnasip ‘saniARoe
14BISIBA0 INOA 10} YIOM INO JO Souanbasuoo ay Bulpuelsiapun JSRaq Ul SSRILILLOD SOUBULS 8y} ISISSE 0} papusjul Si UOIEDIUNIWOD SIY |

‘ypne ayy woyy sbuipuy Jueoyubls 4
pue ‘ppne ay; jo Buiwny pue adoos pauueld sy} Jo maIABAO LY A
‘spiepuejs Bunipne pajdeooe Ajjeseuab Japun sanqisuodsasnQ 4

-99JIWILIOY) 3DUBUIH 3y} 0} BuIMOj|0) DU}
S1eoIuNWWo? 0} palinbal ale am ‘g0z ‘0€ duUnr Papus Jeak aU) 10} PUE JO SE SJUBLUSJE]S [BIDUBUY S,¥VD SU3 40 JIPNE JNO YJIM UOROSUUOD U]

"SUOIIEIUNLWILLOD 9S8Y) SAI993l
0} Apoq Buiusenob ajeudoidde syl I aspIWIWOY) SdUBULY BY) SA3IISq M quawbpnf [euoissajoid Jno u| Buiodal [eloueuly JOAO |0J3UOD
[ewssjul aAdaye Buiuleurew pue Bupuswaidus ‘Buiubisap Buipnjour ‘aoueusanob yim pabieyos asouyl Jo ybisieno ay) uim ‘sjuswisiels
[eroueuy sy} bupedasd Joy o|qisuodsal osie si juswebeuepy "pensind aq 0} e SAAROS[qO 3Oy} YIIUM £q suoisioap axew pue saioiod
ysijqese 0} Ajoyine ay} aAey oum pue yyO 8ul Jo saAnoalqo ayy Buiasiyoe Joj ajqisuodsal S1e OYm 8soy) 0} sidjal yuswsabeuepy ‘ssaooid
Bunsodas jeioueuy ayy Buessieno Buipnjoul ‘wvyO 8yl Jo fqejunosoe ayy o} pajejas suoiebiiqo pue (VD) Auouiny BuIY/UOBUSAUOD
Auno) jusy - spidey puels ay} jo uondaup dlbajesns auy Buisasiano Joj Ajiqisuodsal yym asoy) o} siajel aoueusanob yum pabieyd asoyl

-goueu1anob yum pabieys asouy
UM palesiunwiwiod aq 0} Siejell uo Joypne ue 0} aouepinb sepinoid pue splepuels Saysiiqe}ss L1 ‘ON Splepuels Bunipny uo juswslels
‘Ipne ay} o} pajejas sanssi pue sbuipuy weoyubis Buiprebas soueusanob yum pabieys asoy} yum Ajpipueo pue Ajuado sjedlunwwod
0} sJojipne 1oy pasealoul aAey suoneoadxa ‘gouewianob ul saonoeid isaq Bulbiewe pue sain|ie) ypne pazioignd |[om JO 9em ay} u|

‘99ILIWOY 3dUBUIS BU) JO SIoqWIBI

089¢-9LL (919) *xed

-/
000L-¥LL (919) :ouoydajpL -
L e A SIUBYNSUOD pUB SIUBJUNODDY O Qm

008 23NS “A'N NUSAY 20IUOW 66 dT1 ‘'vewpes 0ag




 __________
®
SJUE){NSUOD) PUE SJUBUNOIDY O Q m _
dT1 ‘vewrpfas oad

‘payIoads asay) ueyj Jayjo suoAue Aq pasn 8q jou pjnoys pue pspusjul jou
SI pue jJuswabeuew pue 9ajILILIO) 8dueUl- 8Y] JO 8N pue uoljeuLiojul ayj 1o} Ajajos pepusjul
SI pue suolejiwi| [eusnbasuod sey ‘Jpne ino jo uyed se pasedaid sem UoHEIUNWILIOD SIY |

11-01 ajepdn Bunipny pue buipoday |eoueul
6 wea | Juswabebu 4717 ‘uewplds Odd
8-/ 1pny jo Buiwi| pue adodg psuueld
o) uoijew.juo) asusapuadapu
G-¥ sanjiqisuodsay s,uewples Odg
9 sanjiqisuodsay s juswabeuey

SjuUauo Jo dgel




mameemes Q|
Jpne 8y} buunp
apew suonejussaidas Buiwiyuod JsRs| B yim uewpiss O0dg spinoid ~
|eusjewwl st sjuawisnipe Jipne psplodaiun jo 10edwi ay)
Jey) uewplas OAg 0} Wije pue syuswisnipe lipne [eLsjew plodsy »
uewplas
09 01 3|gejieAe uoljewlojul pajejal pue spJodal [eioueulj jle S3eiN »
sajewnsa Buunoooe pue sjuswbpnl sjqeuoseal asn 4
so|diound Bununoooe sjeudoidde 10819S A+
sjasse Yy pienbajeg »
suone|nbal pue sme| Jueas|as yum Aldwop
spiooai Bununoooe Jadoud pue Buipiodal
[EIDUBULY JOAO |OJJUOD [BUISIUI SAIJOSYS Ulejulew pue ysligeisg »
eollawy Jo
sa)e)S payun 8y} ui paydacoe Ajjessusb so|diouiid Bununodoe yim
AJWIOUOD Ul SBINSOJOSIp pue sjuswajels [eldueulj suy} ajedald e

saniqisuodsay s juswabeuely




T
®
SJUB]NSUOD) PUE SJUBIUNOIDY O Q m _
411 ‘vewpios 0dg

uoluido yons ou ssaidxa ||Im Sm pue ‘Burpodail |eloueULl) JOAO [0JJUOD [eulSUl
JO SSauSAl}oaye a3y uo uoluido ue Buissaidxa Jo asodind ay} 10} Jou INg ‘seoueIsSWnaID
ay} ul sjeudoidde ase jey) sainpaooid Jpne Buiubisap pue ypne ay) Buluueld Joj siseq

e se Buipodal [BIoUBUL JOAO [0AUOD [BUISIUI S, YWD U} JO UOHEISPISUOD SSPNjoUl Ipne 8yl »

uonejuasald Juswaje)s |eloueul ||eJSAO Sjenjeas 4
Juswabeuew Aq spew sajewnse buiunodoe
pue sjuswBpnl jueoyiubis pue pasn so|diound Buiunoooe JO Ssaudjqeuoseal sy} ssessy 4

sjusWa)e]s [eroueul 8y} Jo Aoeinooe oy} jo Auelenb ou 'sjuswisjels [eloueuy
sy} Ul SeINsojosIp pue sjunowe ay) Buioddns 8ouSpPIAS ‘siseq IS8} B UO ‘SullUexy 4

pneJy 1o sJoud [eusjew Bunoolep Jo soueInsse ‘Bjnjosqe
ueyj jeyjel .O_chowmm._ QU_>O._Q 0] pue seale sl ._wcm_c uo sndo0j 0} Umcm_wm_u sSlipny »
so|diound Bugunoooe paydasoe Ajeisusb yum Ajuwiiopuod
u ‘sjoadsal [euajew |je ul ‘Auiey pejuasald ale sjuswsje)s [elouBul U} JSYIBUM
1noge uoluido Ue Wiio} pUE Sjuawale)s [efoueul 800Z 94} "BdLSWY JO SSlels
pajun 8y} u1 pajdacoe Ajjeseuab spiepuels Buipne Yyjim asueploode Ul ‘jpny e

salljiqisuodsay s.uewpldsg 044




®
SIUBYNSUOD pue SIUBJUNOIDY
d11 ‘vewpjes odd O Q m
VvVO ey} 0} }0adsal yum souspuadapul Jno UlejUIBy e
Jpne ay} ul paynuapl Buiodal
[EISUBUL} JBAO |OJJUOD |BUISIUI Ul SOSSSUNEOM |BLISJEW PuE SaI0USI0|YSpP ueoubis 4
soalojdwa 18yjo

10 Juawabeuew Joluas AQ PaSNeD JOYISUM SjusLLIDJe]s [BIOUBUL B} JO JUSWSIE]SSIW
|eLojewW & SOSNED Jey) pnely pue juswabeuew Jojuss Bulnjoaul pney ‘sjoe jebsyji -

SJUBJUNOJOE JOYJ0 UM SUONB)NSUOD S juswabeuey 4

Juswabeuew ypm ‘aouspuodsaliod
Jo 109[gns 8y} Jo ‘pasSNISIP aiam Jey) Jipne syj woy Puisue sanssi jueoyiublg 4
Juswabeuew wouy Busenbal aie am suonjeyuasaldal USUAN £

sainpado.d Jpne Jno Jo Jnsal e Se uoljusje
s Juswabeueuw o0} JyBNoIq S1oM Jey) SJUSLLISIEISSIW PSJOS1I0OUN PUE PRJOSLI0D [BUSIEN A

Juswabeuew yum syuswsaibesip Jo ypne ay) Buunp passjunoous selndyIp eoyubis A

S2INSO|OSIp JUSWa)e}s [eloueul pue sejewiss Buunodoe ‘saioljod Buiunoooe Buipnjoul
‘saonoeld Buunoooe Juedyiubis s,YvD 8y} Jo sjoadse aAnejjenb ay} Jnoge SMaIAINQ 4

:(a|qeoljdde

se) Buipnjoul ‘ssadold Buipoday |eloueul ay} BuiessIsA0 Ul S3RIWWOY

aoueuid ay} Jo sanjigisuodsal ay} 0} JueAs|al “quawbpnl [euoissajoid no ul
‘ale Jey} Jpne ay} o} pajejal s1epew juesylubis a1ediunwILIod ‘uonojdwod uodn e

(penunuod)
saljljiqisuodsay s,uewples 044




77 T 0]

‘sInoA Ajnay AJap

-sasodind 1ayjo Aue 10} pasn & Jou p|noys pue
VYD 2Ul UIyIM SJayjo pue Juswabeuew ‘sspiuiwo)d adueuly sy} Jo asn ay} Joy Ajejos papuajul si podais siyL

SJUBJUNO2DY AN PAYILISD JO SINISU| UEOLISWY By}
4O syuswannbal dy} UIYNM ‘YD Y} O} 109dS3al UM SJUBJUNOIJE juapuadapul a1e am jey) uuyuod Agasay SpA

-gouapuadapul 1no uo Jeaq o} Jybnoy} aq Ajgeuoseal Aew ‘Juawbpnl(
jeuoissajoid 1no ul ‘1ey} YO 3y} pue uul INo usamiaq sdiysuonejas Aue Jo ajeme Jou ale S\ ‘aouapuadapul
Jno uo Jeaq o} Jybnoy} aq Alqeuoseas Aew quawbpnl jeuoissajoid Jno ul ‘jey} YD dYl pue Wil4 Jno usamiaq
sdiysuoneyas jje buipsebal noA ypm ‘Ajjenuue jses| je ‘a)ediunwiwod am jey) annbal spiepuels |euoissajoid IO

‘800 ‘0S @unr papua Jeak au} 10} (YD) Auouyiny
BUSIY/UONUSAUOD Auno) ) - spidey puels) 8y} JO SJUSWISJE}S [eroueuly ay) ypne o) pabebua uaaq saey op\

uonewlyuo) asuapuadapul 8y

Auoyiny eualyjuonuaauo) Auno) sy - spidey puels
29)iWIWLIO) doueUl{ 8y} JO sIqUIS

8002 ‘1.2 Isnbny

0004-¥LL (919) :uoydapL a
PS9Z-E056Y UEBILDIN ‘Spided pueiD $IUEYNSUOD PUE SIUBIUNOIDY O Q m
008 22INS “M'N 2NUIAY S0IUOW 66 a1 ‘wewppes 0ad




SJUB}[NSUO)) PUE SIUEIUNOIDY
d11 ‘vewpias oad

pneJj Jo JOLS 0} anp Jayjeym ‘Juswsieissiu

|elS)eW JO YSH JO JUSLISSASSE N0 UO Paseq sue|d ypne dojeaaQ
SYSLI pNelj pue jipne ssnosip 0} SUOISSas Bulwiosurelq jeussiul p|oH
sainpaosoud [eonAjeue Ateulwijaid wiopad pue s3|9A2 Jueoyiubis jo
sybnoJypjiem wiopad ‘sjosuod jeussiul Jo Buipue}siapun ino ajepdn
VO @y) 0} oijioads sio)oe; annjeuenb pue aafeljenb jo
UONEJSPISUOD UO paseq spjoysaly} Ajjeusjew sjenjeas pue dojaneQ
VvvD @y} bunosye

pneyy pajoadsns Jo pnely Aue jo abpajmou sey Juswabeuew
Jaylaym pue pneuly Jo Sysil 8y} Jnoge SMIIA s Juswabeuew jo aiinbuj

Juswiajelssiw jeusiew
J0 ysu pue Buipodau eroueuy Buigosyje seale Anuapi pue suonesado

ssaulisnq jo Buipuejsiapun Ino ajepdn o0} juswabeuew ypm }JasN 4
(800z AInr - sunr) buluue|d e

oadl

upny jo Buiwi] pue adodog pauue|d




[ s e ey
®
SJUEJNSUO)D) PUE SJUBIUNOIDY O Q m _
dT1 ‘vewpes 0ad

29))IWwo) adueuld
2y} Y)IIM MaIAS) pue podal Jno pue sjuswale)s [eloueul anss| 4

Juswabeuew yjm yeap
MaIAaI ‘pajsanbal jI sjuswalels |eloueuly ayj Jo uonesedaid ul isissy 4
sainpaoosd malnal [ednihjeue sepdn 4
sasuadxe pue senuaAsy »
anuaAal palajep pue sesuadxa paniode ‘e|geded sjunoddy 4
9|geAI®0al SJUNOIJY A
SJUSW]SaAUI pue ysed 4
:uo pasnoo} Ajuewnd (800Z 19q010Q) seinpadoid pus-lesp e

(penunuod)

1upny jo Buiwi] pue adoog pauue|d




—
®
SJUBJNSUOD PUE SIUBIUNOIDY O Q m _
dT1 ‘uvewpids oad

ableyn-u| soueinssy - ewsylig yu3 »
JebBeuep\ @oueInssy - 8sioquelqe’] uyor
lojoali(q Juswaebebu] aouelnssy - uouadng jed »

spidey puelo - wes] 82IAISS Jpny uewples O0dg °

wea | juswabebuzy
d171 ‘uewplss 044




./
@
SJUB}[NSUOD PUE SJUBIUNOIDY O Q m _
dT11 ‘vewpies 0dd

ajepdn Bunipny pue Builioday |eldueut]




sy OQE|
80URUIBN0Y)
Yl pabiey) esoyl Yl uoheduniuioy sJoypny 8yl ‘11 ON SVS
Buydwes Jipny ‘6€ "ON SYS 0} juswipusiy “LLl 'ON SVS »
pauie}qo eduspirg jipny oy} bunenjeas pue
SYSIy passassy 0} asuodsay Ul sainpadoid jipny buiwiopad ‘0Ll ON SVS
juswwajejssiyy [eusjepy Jo S}Siy a4}
Buissassy pue juawuoliaug sj| pue Ajpuz aiyj Bbuipuejsispun ‘604 ‘ON SVS
uoisiniedns pue buluueld ‘801 'ON SVS
pny ue Bunonpuo) ul AjjeLsjey pue sty Jipny ‘L0l 'ON SVS
8ouspIng JIpny ‘901 ON SVS
spJepuejs
Bunipny pejdaoody Ajjeieues ‘G6 'ON SYS O} Juspusily ‘GOl 'ON SVS
(SLIOM 4O eoueWLIOLSd 8y} Ul 81eD) |euU0ISS8j0Id ang) sainpadoid pue
spuepue)s bunipny Jo uoneayipod ‘L "ON SYS 0} Jusipusily ‘Y0l ON SVYS ~
upne go0¢ ‘0¢ eunf sy}
1o} pajuaws|dwi aq 0} pajinbai aje yoiym ‘111 'ON SVS ybnoiyl ¥01 ©ON
(SYyS) spJepuels bunipny uo juswsiels ‘SpJepue)s JUSWSSOSSEe XSl MSN o

S S S >

S

saljIAl}oY pieog spiepuels bunipny




Item IV

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF
CONSENT TO EASEMENT GRANT RELATED TO AN EASEMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY-COUNTY BUILDING
AUTHORITY AND 201 MONROE AVENUE, LLC

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember , moved

the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, 201 Monroe, LLC (the "Developer") has acquired and plans to renovate
and rehabilitate a building located at 245 Monroe Avenue, N.W., formerly known as the River
City Building (the "Building"), adjacent to the DeVos Place convention center ("DeVos Place");
and

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that it obtain several easements in connection
with the renovation and rehabilitation of the Building, including (a) a platform easement on the
roof of DeVos Place for the placement and maintenance of equipment related to the Building,
(b) a tower easement through and under a portion of DeVos Place for the placement and
maintenance of an elevator and stair tower for the Building, (c) a terrace easement for the
placement and maintenance of a portion of an outdoor raised terrace, including an egress hall on
the main level and an exterior sidewalk/ramp with snowmelt, and (d) an ingress and
egress/maintenance and repair easement (collectively, the "Easements"); and

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
has had its engineering consultants, Progressive AE ("Progressive"), review the structural

drawings and calculations provided to it by Developer's consultant and Progressive has

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224996



determined as summarized in a letter to the CAA dated August 11, 2008, that the Easements will
have no significant structural impact on DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, the CAA and the Developer mutually selected an independent appraiser,
Genzink Appraisal Company ("Genzink"), to provide an independent appraisal of the value of
the Easements; and

WHEREAS, Genzink has determined the Easements as described in its appraisal have a
market value of $87,000 and the Developer has‘offered to pay the CAA $100,000 for the
Easements; and

WHEREAS, while the CAA is responsible for the operation of DeVos Place, title to
DeVos Place is in the name of the City-County Building Authority (the "Building Authority")
until such time as bonds the Building Authority issued to finance a portion of DeVos Place are
retired, at which time the CAA will obtain title to DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, an Easement Agreement between the Building Authority and the Developer
(the "Easement Agreement") has been negotiated with the Developer which the Building
Authority has approved and which requires the consent of the CAA as the future title holder of
DeVos Place.

RESOLVED:

1. That the payment of $100,000 by the Developer to the CAA for the Easements is
approved.

2. That the Easement Agreement in the form presented at this meeting is approved
and the Chairman or any other officer of the CAA is authorized to execute a consent to the

granting of the Easements in a form approved by CAA legal counsel.

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224996v1



3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the
same dre hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: August 27, 2008

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
meeting held on August 27, 2008, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to
and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: August 27, 2008

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

3

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224996v1



CONSENT TO EASEMENT GRANT

The undersigned, GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA
AUTHORITY, a Michigan statutory authority, of 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W., Grand Rapids,
Michigan 49503, hereby consents and agrees to the Easement Agreement, including without
limitation, the granting of the easements described in the Easement Agreement by City-County
Building Authority to 201 Monroe Avenue, LLC.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Consent to
Easement Grant as of this day of , 2008.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By

Steven Heacock
Its Chairperson

Acknowledged before me in County, Michigan, on ,
2008, by Steven Heacock, the Chairperson of the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a Michigan statutory authority, for the corporation.

Notary public, State of Michigan, County of
My commission expires:
Acting in the County of

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY:
James J. Rabaut

Warner, Norcross & Judd LLP

Suite 900

111 Lyon Street, N.W.

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

(616) 752-2178

-10-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



Item IV

EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Easement Agreement”) is made and
entered into this 19" day of August, 2008, by and between the City-County Building Authority, a
Michigan statutory authority, whose address is 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W., Grand Rapids,
Michigan 49503 ("Party A"), and 201 Monroe Avenue, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, whose address is 126 Ottawa, N.W., Suite 500, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

("Party B").
RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Party A owns a certain parcel of real property located in the City of
Grand Rapids, Kent County, Michigan, more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto
("Parcel A"); and

WHEREAS, Party B owns a certain parcel of real property located in the City of
Grand Rapids, Kent County, Michigan, more particularly described on Exhibit B attached hereto
("Parcel B"); and

WHEREAS, Party B requires perpetual easements appurtenant to Parcel B on,
over under and across portions of Parcel A for (i) ingress and egress, (ii) an elevator and stair
tower, (iii) a platform for certain equipment serving Parcel B, and (iv) a terrace serving Parcel B.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE AFOREMENTIONED
FACTS, THE PAYMENT BY PARTY B OF THE SUM OF ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($100,000.00), WHICH PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE (AT THE DIRECTION
OF PARTY A) TO THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA
AUTHORITY, AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE RECEIPT
AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE PARTIES AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

L TOWER EASEMENT
1. Party A grants to Party B, an exclusive perpetual easement (the "Tower
Easement") appurtenant to Parcel B, on, over, across, through, and under the portion of Parcel

A described on Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Tower Easement Area") for the construction,
maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of an elevator and stair tower and related

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901



improvements (collectively, “Tower”), which Tower shall serve Parcel B. The owner of Parcel
A shall not erect any buildings or other structures within the Tower Easement Area or in any way
interfere with the owner of Parcel B's use of the Tower Easement Area. The Tower Easement
shall also include an easement of support and the owner of Parcel A shall not allow any activity
on Parcel A which will undermine or compromise the support of the Tower. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the owner of Parcel B shall be responsible to construct appropriate foundations for
the initial construction of the Tower (and the Tower Easement shall also include the right to
maintain such foundations).

2. The Tower Easement shall burden the Tower Easement Area and shall benefit and
run with Parcel B.

3. The owner of Parcel B shall contract for and shall pay all costs associated with the
initial construction of the Tower. Except as specifically provided herein, the owner of Parcel B
shall be responsible for and shall pay all costs associated with the maintenance and repair of the
Tower. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the owner of Parcel B shall
have no duty to construct and/or replace the Tower and may remove the Tower at any time. In
the event the owner of Parcel B removes the Tower, the owner of Parcel B shall restore any
affected Common Walls to close the opening(s) created by the removal of the Tower in the
building located on Parcel A (and, thus, make such building a complete architectural unit).

IL PLATFORM EASEMENT

1. Party A grants to Party B an exclusive perpetual easement (the "Platform
Easement") appurtenant to Parcel B, on, over, across, through, and under the portion of Parcel A
described on Exhibit D attached hereto (the "Platform Easement Area") for the construction,
maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of a platform and various equipment serving
the improvements located on Parcel B (collectively, the "Platform™). The owner of Parcel A
shall not erect any buildings or other structures within the Platform Easement Area or in any way
interfere with the owner of Parcel B's use of the Platform Easement Area. The Platform
Easement shall also include an easement of support and the owner of Parcel A shall not allow
any activity on Parcel A which will undermine or compromise the support of the platform and/or
equipment located within the Platform Easement Area. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
owner of Parcel B shall be responsible to construct appropriate foundations for the initial
construction of the platform and equipment located in the Platform Easement Area (and the
Platform Easement shall also include the right to maintain such foundations). Notwithstanding
anything contained herein to the contrary, the owner of Parcel B shall not construct or maintain
any equipment which shall be located above the “view line” described on the sketch attached to
this Easement Agreement as Exhibit E. In addition, at no time shall the owner of Parcel B place
a load upon the roof of the improvements located on Parcel A exceeding the load per square foot
it was designed to carry and is permitted by applicable law.

2. The Platform Easement shall burden the Platform Easement Area and shall
benefit and run with Parcel B. Except as specifically provided herein, the owner of Parcel B
shall be responsible for and shall pay all costs associated with the maintenance and repair of the
platform and equipment located in the Platform Easement Area. Notwithstanding anything

2-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



contained herein to the contrary, the owner of Parcel B shall have no duty to construct and/or
replace the Platform and may remove the Platform at any time. In the event the owner of Parcel
B removes the Platform, the owner of Parcel B shall repair any damage to the Common Roof
caused by such removal. The owner of Parcel A shall maintain, in good condition, the Common
Roof and all other improvements providing support to the Platform or (in the alternative) provide
alternate support for the Platform at the original location (e.g. elevation) of the Platform.

3. The parties acknowledge and agree that upon 90 days advance written notice to
the owner of Parcel B, the owner of Parcel A may, at its sole cost, relocate the Platform
Easement Area to a new location on Parcel A acceptable to the owner of Parcel B (whose
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned) so long as: (i) the owner of
Parcel A is responsible for and pays all costs and expenses associated with relocating the
platform and equipment located within the Platform Easement Area to the new location; (ii) the
owner of Parcel A obtains all required governmental permits and authorizations required for the
relocation of the platform and equipment located in the Platform Easement Area; (iii) the owner
of Parcel A performs all work to relocate the platform and equipment located in the Platform
Easement Area (including all disconnection and hook-up) in a good and workmanlike manner
and in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, orders, ordinances and regulations; (iv) the
new location of the Platform Easement Area will not increase the operating cost or effectiveness
(in serving the improvements located on Parcel B) of the platform and/or equipment located in
the Platform Easement Area; (v) the relocation of the platform and the equipment located in the
Platform Easement Area does not in any way interrupt any service to the improvements located
on Parcel B; (vi) the parties execute and record a new easement agreement (or an amendment to
this Easement Agreement) in a form reasonably acceptable to the owner of Parcel B under which
the owner of Parcel A grants to Parcel B an easement (on terms substantially similar to the terms
herein) with respect to the new platform easement area location; and (vii) the owner of Parcel A
. obtains the written consent of each party holding a lien with respect to Parcel A to any new
easement agreement and/or amendment described in Subsection II (4) (vi) of this Easement
Agreement.

[II. INGRESS AND EGRESS/MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR EASEMENT

1. Party A hereby grants to Party B, a perpetual easement appurtenant (collectively,
the "Access Easement") to Parcel B across, over and through the following portions of Parcel A:
(i) a path (to be reasonably determined by the owner of Parcel A) from the parking facility
located in basement of DeVos Place (i.e. the structure located on Parcel A) to the portion of the
Tower located adjacent to the basement level of building located on Parcel B and the adjacent
elevator equipment room; (i) the path along the skywalk corridor located in DeVos Place
connecting (a) the portion of the Tower adjacent to the Second Floor of the building located on
Parcel B, (b) the place where such skywalk corridor connects to the Amway Grand Plaza and (c)
the parking garage located within DeVos Place at the second floor level; (iii) the path (including,
without limitation, the switch-back ramp and stairs) between the door located on the Second
Floor of building located on Parcel B and the DeVos Place exit located on Monroe Avenue; (iv)
the area on the roof of DeVos Place located within ten feet (10°) of the Platform easement Area;
(v) the air space located within ten feet (10”) of the Tower and within ten feet (10°) of the north
wall of the building located on Parcel B; and (vi) the air space above and adjacent to the Platform

3-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



Easement Area necessary to construct (e.g. install equipment), maintain, repair, improve and
replace the platform and equipment in the Platform Easement Area (collectively, the "Access
Easement Areas") for the purpose of (a) pedestrian ingress to and egress, (b) with respect to
item III (1) (iv) for the maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of the platform and
equipment located in the Platform Easement Area, (c) with respect to item III (1) (v) for the
maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of the Tower and the building located on
Parcel B, and (d) with respect to item III (1) (vi) for the construction, maintenance, repair,
replacement and improvement of the platform and equipment in the Platform Easement Area.
With respect to all locked door(s) located within any portion of the Access Easement Areas, the
owner of Parcel A shall provide to the owner of Parcel B six (6) sets of keys and/or access cards
(or other similar device) necessary to maneuver through such locked doors (together with
replacement keys, cards, etc., as necessary).

2. The Access Easement shall burden the Access Easement Area and shall benefit
and run with Parcel B.

3. The owner of Parcel A shall maintain and repair or cause to be maintained and
repaired the Access Easement Area.

IV.  TERRACE EASEMENT

1. Party A grants to Party B, an exclusive perpetual easement (the "Terrace
Easement") appurtenant to Parcel B, on, over, across, through, and under the portion of Parcel
A described on Exhibit F attached hereto (the "Terrace Easement Area") for the construction,
maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of a terrace and related improvements
including an egress hall on the main level on the north and new exterior sidewalk/ramp with
snowmelt (collectively, “Terrace”), which Terrace shall serve Parcel B. The owner of Parcel A
shall not erect any buildings or other structures within the Terrace Easement Area or in any way
interfere with the owner of Parcel B's use of the Terrace Easement Area. The Terrace Easement
shall also include an easement of support and the owner of Parcel A shall not allow any activity
on Parcel A which will undermine or compromise the support of the Terrace. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the owner of Parcel B shall be responsible to construct appropriate foundations for
the initial construction of the Terrace (and the Terrace Easement shall also include the right to
maintain such foundations).

2. The Terrace Easement shall burden the Terrace Easement Area and shall benefit
and run with Parcel B.

3. The owner of Parcel B shall contract for and shall pay all costs associated with the
initial construction of the Terrace. Except as specifically provided herein, the owner of Parcel B
shall be responsible for and shall pay all costs associated with the maintenance and repair of the
Terrace. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the owner of Parcel B shall
have no duty to construct and/or replace the Terrace and may remove the Terrace at any time..
In the event the owner of Parcel B removes the Terrace, the owner of Parcel B shall repair any
damage to the building(s) located on Parcel A caused by such removal.

4-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



V. GENERAL

1. Except as specifically provided herein, nothing in this Easement Agreement shall
authorize the owner of Parcel B to, and such owner shall not, do any act which will in any way
encumber the title of the owner of Parcel A in and to the Parcel A, nor shall the interest or estate
of the owner of Parcel A in the Parcel A be in any way subject to any claim whatsoever by virtue
of any act or omission of the owner of Parcel B. Any claim to a lien upon Parcel A arising from
any act or omission of the owner of Parcel B shall be valid only against the owner of Parcel B’s
interest in Parcel A. The owner of Parcel B shall remove any lien or encumbrance on its interest
in Parcel A within 30 days after it has arisen; provided, however, that the owner of Parcel A may
in good faith contest any such item if it posts a bond or other security as provided under
applicable law (or in the event no such law exists, a bond reasonably acceptable to the owner of
Parcel A).

2. The owner of Parcel B acknowledges and agrees that, to the extent that its use of
the easements described in this Easement Agreement will materially impact operations on Parcel
A (e.g. parking of a crane in front of DeVos Place during the installation of equipment in the
Platform Easement Area), the owner of Parcel B shall coordinate such use with the owner of
Parcel A to attempt to reasonably minimize such impact. The owner of Parcel A and the owner
of Parcel B shall reasonably cooperate to address any operational and/or security issues
associated with the easements created under this Easement Agreement.

3. To the extent that the exercise of the owner of Parcel B’s rights hereunder require
the relocation of any utility facilities located on Parcel A as of the date of this Easement
Agreement, the owner of Parcel B shall pay the reasonable cost of such relocation.

4, The owner of Parcel B agrees to carry, at its expense, Commercial Liability
Insurance as will protect the owner of Parcel A and the owner of Parcel B from claims for
damages due to bodily injury, loss, or damage to property for which the owner of Parcel B is
responsible to indemnify the owner of Parcel A under Article V (5) below. Such insurance shall
(a) be occurrence-based, and (b) provide coverage in an amount equal to $1,000,000 combined
single limit. A certificate of insurance evidencing all coverage specified in this paragraph shall
be furnished by the owner of Parcel B to the owner of Parcel A upon request. These certificates
shall contain a provision that the coverages afforded under such policies shall not be cancelable
until at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of intention to cancel has been delivered by the
insurer to the owner of Parcel A.

The owner of Parcel A agrees to carry, at its expense (or arrange for its managing
agent to carry), Commercial Liability Insurance as will protect the owner of Parcel A and the
owner of Parcel B from claims for damages due to bodily injury, loss, or damage to property on
Parcel A. Such insurance shall (a) be occurrence-based, and (b) provide coverage in an amount
equal to $1,000,000 combined single limit. A certificate of insurance evidencing all coverage
specified in this paragraph shall be furnished by the owner of Parcel A to the owner of Parcel B
upon request. These certificates shall contain a provision that the coverages afforded under such
policies shall not be cancelable until at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of intention to
cancel has been delivered by the insurer to the owner of Parcel B. In addition, so long as the

-5-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



owner of Parcel A is a municipality or a Michigan statutory authority, the owner of Parcel A may
satisfy its obligation to maintain Commercial Liability Insurance under this Easement Agreement
through a commercially reasonable program of self-insurance under which (i) the self insured
retention of the owner of Parcel A shall not exceed $1,000,000 and (ii) the owner of Parcel B
shall be named as an additional insured party on any re-insurance policy obtained by or for the
benefit of the owner of Parcel A. '

The owner of Parcel A shall, at its expense, insure (or arrange for its managing
agent to insure) DeVos Place, including, without limitation, the common walls shared by the
DeVos Place and the Tower ("Common Walls") and the roof of DeVos Place on which the
Platform is located ("Commeon Roof™") against direct and indirect loss or damage by fire and any
other casualty covered under a special form coverage (f/k/a all-risk) property insurance policy
(with commercially reasonable amounts of coverage), including without limitation flood (if
applicable), earthquake (if applicable), acts of terrorism, boiler and machinery, ordinance or law
(undamaged portion of building, demolition and increased cost of construction), and with no
exclusion for windstorms. The owner of Parcel A shall not modify the Common Walls or
Common Roof in any manner that would adversely impact the owner of Parcel B’s use of the
Tower and/or Platform or the exercise of the owner of Parcel B’s rights hereunder. In the event
of any damage to the Common Walls or Common Roof, the owner of Parcel A shall (subject to
the provisions of this paragraph) promptly restore the Common Walls and Common Roof to a
condition substantially similar to that immediately prior to the casualty in question. The Owner
of Parcel A shall coordinate all such restoration work so that it is accomplished in an efficient
manner and contemporaneous with the owner of Parcel B's re-construction/repair of the Tower
and Platform (if applicable). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner of Parcel A shall have no
duty to restore the Common Walls in the event the Tower is destroyed and the owner of Parcel B
determines that it shall not rebuild the Tower. In addition, notwithstanding the foregoing, the
owner of Parcel A shall have no duty to restore the Common Roof in the event the Platform is
destroyed and the owner of Parcel B determines that it shall not rebuild the Platform. The policy
of property insurance described in this paragraph shall name owner of Parcel B as an additional
insured party. In addition, so long as the owner of Parcel A is a municipality or a Michigan
statutory authority, the owner of Parcel A may satisfy its obligation to maintain fire/casualty
property damage insurance under this Easement Agreement through a commercially reasonable
program of self-insurance.

The owner of Parcel B shall, at its expense, insure the Tower (excluding any
Common Walls) and the Terrace, against direct and indirect loss or damage by fire and any other
casualty covered under a 100% replacement cost special form coverage (f/k/a all-risk) property
insurance policy, including without limitation flood (if applicable), earthquake (if applicable),
acts of terrorism, boiler and machinery, ordinance or law (undamaged portion of building,
demolition and increased cost of construction), and with no exclusion for windstorms. In the
event of any damage to the Tower, Platform, and/or the Terrace, the owner of Parcel B shall have
no duty to restore or rebuild the Tower, Platform and/or the Terrace. The policy of property
insurance described in this paragraph shall name owner of Parcel A as an additional insured

party.

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner of Parcel A and the owner of Parcel B
agree that the amounts of insurance coverage required hereunder shall be increased from time to
time to be consistent with the amounts of such coverages reasonably maintained for similar risks
and it is mutually agreed by Party A and Party B that the financial liability of Party B shall not be
limited by the insurance coverage amounts required to be carried by Party B pursuant to this
Easement Agreement. In addition, all insurance required hereunder shall be obtained from an
insurance company qualified to do business in the state of Michigan. The owner of Parcel A and
the owner of Parcel B each agree to provide the other 30 days’ prior written notice of any
reduction, cancellation or material modification of any insurance coverage required to be
maintained by such owner under this Easement Agreement.

5. Subject to the waivers contained herein, the owner of Parcel B agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the owner of Parcel A, the Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) and the CAA’s manager of DeVos Place, SMG, and
their respective officers, commissioners, boardmembers, employees and agents from any
liability, claim, demand or expense, including for injury to or death of any person or damage to
property of every kind and nature arising from or in connection with the use and occupancy of
the Tower Easement Area, the Terrace Easement Area, and/or the Platform Easement Area
caused by the acts or negligence of the owner of Parcel B or its agents, employees, contractors,
subcontractors, guests and invitees.

6. The owner of Parcel A on behalf of itself and its managers and agents hereby
waives all right of recovery against the owner of Parcel B and its agents, employees, contractors,
subcontractors, guests, and invitees and agrees not to assign or transfer any right of subrogation
to its property damage insurance carrier or any other party as to any and all insurable damage to
or destruction of Parcel A and/or the improvements located on Parcel A and any other property
of the owner of Parcel A. The owner of Parcel A agrees (i) to notify its property damage
insurance carriers of the agreement contained herein not to transfer or assign any rights of
subrogation to said insurance carrier; and (ii) to require its property damage insurance carriers to
issue a waiver of any such rights of subrogation set forth in any and all subrogation clauses or
endorsements included in such carriers' policies of insurance.

7. The owners of Parcel A and Parcel B each agree to pay or cause to be paid, prior
to delinquency, all taxes and instaliments of special assessments with respect to their respective
parcels, the buildings and improvements located thereon, and any personal property located
thereon.

8. In the event that a party hereto shall default hereunder, and such default is not
cured within 15 days after written notice from the nondefaulting party to the defaulting party,
except that if such default cannot be cured within said fifteen (15) day period, this period shall be
extended for an additional thirty (30) days, provided that the defaulting party commences to cure
such default within the fifteen (15) day period and proceeds diligently thereafter to affect such
cure, then the nondefaulting party may perform the obligation of the defaulting party and the
expenses thereof shall be immediately due and owing from the defaulting party to the
nondefaulting party. Any amount due from the defaulting party to the nondefaulting party shall
bear interest at the lesser of (a) fifteen percent (15%) per annum, or (b) the maximum rate

-7-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



permitted by applicable 'law, compounded annually. The remedies provided for herein are in
addition to and not in lieu of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity and the
nondefaulting party shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this Easement Agreement by
an appropriate action at law or in equity, including, without limitation, an action for a specific
performance.

9. All notices, demands, and requests given or required to be given pursuant to this
Easement Agreement shall be in writing. All such notices, demands, and requests shall be
deemed to have been properly given if (i) served in person by messenger or (ii) sent by
nationally recognized overnight courier service (e.g. Federal Express or UPS) in which case such
notice shall be deemed given the day after the date sent with all fees paid.

10.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any part or provision of this Easement
Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part or provision. This
Easement Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.

11.  The easements created under this Easement Agreement and the rights and
responsibilities set forth shall, be perpetual and shall run with the land. The provisions of this
instrument may be amended, but only with the written consent of all of the owners of Parcel A
and Parcel B.

12.  Party B acknowledges that Party A shall convey Parcel A to the Grand Rapids-
Kent County Convention Arena Authority upon full payment of the outstanding bonds associated
with the improvements located, as of the date of this Easement Agreement, on Parcel A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Easement
Agreement as of this 19" day of August, 2008.

City-County Building Authority, a
Michigan statutory authority

By:

Daryl Delabbio
Its: Chairman

201 Monroe Avenue, LLC, a
Michigan limited liability company

By:

Its:

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



STATE OF MICHIGAN )

)ss:
COUNTY OF KENT )
Acknowledged before me in Kent County, Michigan on , 2008,

by Daryl Delabbio, as the Chairman of the City-County Building Authority, a Michigan statutory
authority, for the authority.

Notary public, State of Michigan, County of
My commission expires
Acting in the County of Kent

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)ss:
COUNTY OF KENT )
Acknowledged before me in Kent County, Michigan on , 2008,

by , as of 201
Monroe Avenue, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, for the limited liability company.

Notary public, State of Michigan, County of
My commission expires
Acting in the County of Kent

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



EXHIBIT A
Parcel A

Part of Kent Plat and Part of the NE fractional1/4 of Section 25, Town 7 North, Range 12 West,
more particularly described as: Commencing 469.88 feet South 1°17'56" East along the West
line of Monroe Avenue (100 feet wide) from the Northeast corner of Lot 2 of Kent Plat; thence
South 1°17'56" East 561.52 feet to the Southeast corner of the North 35.66 feet of Lot 34 of Kent
Plat; thence South 88°44'34" West parallel with the North line of said Lot 34 and said North line
extending 92.22 feet; thence South 1°17'56" East 44.42 feet to the North line of Lyon Street (66
feet wide); thence South 88°44'34" West along said North line 156.31 feet; thence North 1°17'56"
West 29.94 feet to the North line of Lyon Street (96 feet wide); thence South 88°44'34" West
along said North line 280.91 feet to the East dock line of Grand River; thence North 3°21'54"
East along said dock line 311.0 feet; thence North 5°21'17” East along said dock line 267.86 feet;
thence North 88°42'04" East 473.10 feet to the point of beginning.

The property address and tax parcel number listed below are provided solely for
informational purposes, without warranty as to accuracy or completeness. If the information
listed below is inconsistent in any way with the legal description listed above, the legal
description listed above shall control.

Property Address: 245 Monroe Avenue, N.W.

Tax Parcel Nos.: #41-13-25-207-024

A-1

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



EXHIBIT B
Parcel B

That part of Lots 34 and 35, Kent Plat, City of Grand Rapids, Kent County, Michigan, as
recorded in Liber 19 of Plats, Page 12, and that part of the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 25,
Town 7 North, Range 12 West, City of Grand Rapids, Kent County, Michigan, described as:
Commencing at the Southeast corner of Lot 35, Kent Plat; thence North 1 degree 17 minutes 56
seconds West along the West line of Monroe Avenue (100 feet wide) 44.33 feet to the Southeast
corner of the North 35.66 feet of Lot 34, Kent Plat; thence South 88 degrees 44 minutes 34
seconds West parallel with the North line of said Lot 34 and said North line, extended 92.22 feet;
thence South 1 degree 17 minutes 56 seconds East 44.42 feet (measured 44.33 feet) to the North
line of Lyon Street (66 feet wide); thence North 88 degrees 44 minutes 34 seconds East along the
North line of said Lyon Street 92.22 feet to beginning.

The property address and tax parcel number listed below are provided solely for
informational purposes, without warranty as to accuracy or completeness. If the information
listed below is inconsistent in any way with the legal description listed above, the legal
description listed above shall control.

Property Address: 201 Monroe Avenue, N.W.

Tax Parcel Nos.: #41-13-25-226-004

B-1

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



EXHIBIT C

Tower Easement Area
Includes "Tower Easement" described/depicted on the attached Nederveld Survey (Project No.

08100149.1) and the portion of the "New Construction" area located on Parcel A depicted on
attached Via Design drawings.

C-1

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



: ivi- W5y :.t...q. (R H: GO uvurc&..._ iy e.vm..«-.-..muzg o3
. L_.(»swawun..w s S S D AN “ Rkt e T 2 - u (2810 . :2-3!.-«.&-..:_ o
VereZs 66 npas e RIS 1500] Prng = ¢ 1] 45 00EAY ittt Fardons g se v . W ves Iwiv it ety s
ﬁwoﬂw.cﬁu;;z.. ..cnm.-.ﬂwh«ﬂumﬂi ™ wm},qm W..Mn_ ynv,m N - BIIS CUI ;Y 2 S e ey v BN Mhess vewy ..u. iﬂ"
* AN N E . 6 - v 3
e a..ww.udvm.w.. ....».meﬂwﬁq? m.ﬂ w > m m a w Z i UNLMUI] PN - ¢ i £ a0y 43 £z vty i, ouso; Woisszag)
Ve et T, : . VATUID PN - DUSDIG Oy 385 L2 86 § ) T
‘ 1 . . g 3 B feeny LT DO 10wy i s SN
o At wicgiy FRTSIN I Tty AT weidlams PR (e Jo3¢ 99) aong oo ph - AR T OND 5 pl popEn
A rer iy g gy e . TP dtidiamig « g S SR ; G T G0 S Wi Y @ 5393 Ze s PR
S e gon ¢ L IRPE 000, H ARy [T VIOIY N TEI6 0Iwwpra auy pio g % el P AP d20235
] AR AL LEITE Ut L D vaptand " W O LA pg DT DA O BOY isop Y
i Friteneon SULA idv ey - RIS M ST OPRFS W00 20 1038 BT AT 11 1003 QYT arem St 50 D e
& . N ! j ~ o L 2 ! - b, <8
7y ey ¢ T o bt o [ TR R U uueﬁptvv.w «QM».‘ o \..Mw.\\« BN, AOJCI SO i e Sud Granp 3 m.z,”. v%w
X S N P ok B N TROREEY I g o s TUd] g Sdp e g o g 2 Mo Bl ind
Y, ne ) WNEGEIDAMNG [ruatesnasg gy knveading gpry R e e ...%.?w. unﬁ.w:.x.e.,uch.. I 2 duedannh 30 pagussen
L E 5 e i W goseuy Sovg Ay sy 36 W43 100 jok pun Py sty m.ﬁ. .é.w..q .ﬂﬂ MM‘. 2§ ;ﬂ\w GWEIVE RS O Ny
2 et : 53 ey e H B O SO 51 W) 3 P 58 bt Fibnos
fa e T \ \§\ " YOSEr W GO0y Aty SUE TN RIDID §3 AP g e G0 pue e u.sc.n..? :w%.“.hv..}.“m\...dumwﬁwm,
¥ 3 S g DS @3 g IR0 321 M " o YRR DY M
fe R l WRENIOG vy iy . JAFHIS NOA'T
IV SIIAIGM S B0 QB s
HES 4
i) BV J0 10 B e o LET8 DTSR
2 ous Suoo pas, > . T g v AR IR S 25 \ . s s 2
g ity & a....wnw.v,»unu.a Sy CF JO3 003 4G Sum 4SS S5 10 s | T A E S EE s T 7
- e i w3 Evbpag Biojaes oY 10 930 Syr Sumd ea STar 1.9Cstu: / S ¢ NRTIC
i R IS BRI ot A X é LI L e o R
Y wser gt ) > NS &2 J0 SN} RGE 02 139} 4 3 M P reaDRE SSuaEuy ~ e
* - d .or BE % 507500000 Py BvuBag 55 [a0.s sut 0p SSRGS Apmlsha € s -
ﬂsw ? 1%” s u_nw e 34 Bl 12 IZT6 M_EE SeRON BWOUI IO tudy puok b o
} F 10T jo Sems 3zong PP 10 BadRIRY O LITTIE D *Bdg o, ; M
IO BL YT 200000, 59 DI Fison Jbey Spdey pones 0 b g ey [ R
m 0 VO TF Ai0T 0 1559 ke SN0 PUSTW 0 g0 48 4o »:....w:,www\l_‘, mM&M&M z H= Tt i
_ “Beorznd, > s P 21 ey ] ke 4
U oniyr 109 1887 4ng0006 Coon o o e o 2 s SRE 3.9.CiasE a 24 R e
o G - SEROLOLE GARIE R0 2 U IECRTTE 30 OB Dagar 8
e e BOX IO G O3 S SOD0s 1505 GR(E D D9 195 evs S i TS
4 u..t 5 ow..os IO TETL B ST CIION IPU) U8 Q0T M35 pqnm N 3 ~ T
s U B 00 F 354108 BN WSS LTV b rlasufas saenr SO Sl & R
LDIR [O Ity 24 OF #F 197 PN JO i WK ) Uite (RO 130y goge & P PO w3
&.«.R.nwagw AHAQ B 32 MO8 10 UPBY GRS WK w1 30 SANE KOIGIROE Mww (S EN B
¢ .m”.””. L ..v..b.gu\ SLIVLY UKD & AT Joap Sy Sarep [LE e .t.vuhka“»@-s - vj _ N
Py ..xvtc...eﬁwu.anaw.w 0T 40 CF 10T JO DUKS SSONGHOT 1 12 ORI S0 LS = S %
5 SPECY PR 30 AT MW NS ST WIS 50 i) ” [ - e
: 5 " £ t ¢ IROTEION m o - . e S P b Ses
5&&»&:..“3&%% .u..u\..vbes TL 0 WiSlg 48 §i W) W pRpanes s uebipnny ,wﬂox PRI PR PR A 3
n £ T gy g T SFOT 10 A 0N 04 T O ST SIST £I0F 10 4508 Sk = A\ P EE. AT EY . DSOS I Y :
R Dbk pue OF Db o LT SCT 4B IXC I0G [NINT5EF 4O M WG | il Gl e
T T :
o wiGEOrd 2yr mew Si33GpauAs Poiosos . P ; 2T apiomtts  aurarss il %
o M.whbvww«ﬁ.m.?“ﬂifow.odw@ »mﬂt&.wmo v.w«:« HONS e JissGaine e 2 opyos ) womzes / ey G T3 =
& ; Wi Swedg jo ety W w1 % (O EF 3 ol e v { ¥ :
- TN 3091 GO 3,1 RN ST 1901 06 20 08 b1 e < o L R v B
: e - WE N oM ~ - -
4 h&ww Mmcm.ﬁdh Pat N BUVDIE SM0QT D RO Ch £rpip 10 abus eaus e &E.ba. 309 3% H_ 7 \ =
oy T2 S SUEDs ICC) 69 gL B C0® 339 48 21 Ausdrsamiiy [ 1 B A facien
Biaonbag 30 1coos n:.amm 2,57 50ai00 BIU0Y) 183 CONT W_eT. vEERS S3Bl i MY oo N :
ot ool 0 IR0 Sl €1 OF 9T PIOT 4 duy Gisor s gy @y302 354 poCL . fraveme s L N —
TR LDTEG 200 BE 107 4007 O 15t BRE 10N Jyl 10 PR eqines we) A ey Lt
PN sy Co) Ty Sodip 40 T idp vt Busic iay 65 b0 M 90200008 ! , 1 iein )
Tl TOi SN POS 0 GF 10T JO 4BI0N SAOBYINSE 6i 1 Sormmpanier 1 1 T e
G .né&c.w,um.rﬁuu,w.vrn ,&MMEJ»Q....., 57 B TP o Bo0a00: W iy Fyuned L 3 ; i
s sosfom Muden £ RN ke jay g A G W T <m0 it . . . S S S W o P v

i PRSI JOu 2NINIEWI WHCGA Y Y DG nes seettr
AT eAR omes ety [LAL SO 24 '»

..... - ST S it e s,
............ T A IR L A e

C-2

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



w 5
Pt = ”? i
8 . i i
“ AT A

Nl l
Iy | &;
O
1)
B )
~
1\
y 5
if= L
| Qg o
Ol o
Ha

C-3

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



ggl; }; _.":J
i!i -'.;‘!:g
{ (Bt

Al
1 [
+

Pl f?;}

% .r;J_

i

g
(3 ]
T
i
" Y +
3
ol
Vo]
RS el
4L o b
: /)

:.::“i po '-.5‘,1;"
el _';’i'lg -"‘I.*" i

.gsgfjf?z e
W':.}'g ;‘1:;‘;%
| Riritir B,

2 s
,"(71' 1 . 1
é} :§
(351 Rl M [
S‘

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2

Rerin A0

S 4 i b

o g mn ¢4
e d
g b dain g

C-4

b u

Ruwer City Building

3

Ivia

N
.> ﬁ?



.x- % 1] f
O P
. Y 1
s { H
4 1
s GRS IR
AR
¥
H

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2

Safpers
i

1£'| ,‘;
s o,
i
£ 0
it
Wi d
%
M)
i
3
2,
)

=1

.5 ey lns

i.‘.

LXY

159

Sesrose
a0 il

m——— o,

e




[via

Poa

i B
EETEES X ¢
i fi’ﬂ

Rerover i
Raer Ciov Buidugo

K
Q)

&y 2
NIk

-

bt
g IIMIHH i
nmma i

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



1

via

g

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



Ly
i
‘."". ]
— Ml
= e
. ot
4 =
¢ [WS)
. <3
g ——
K > U =y, i% P ~d
! - o - . .
N , e L ox e e
S {;3 1 e -
-} ".s: A :.Q /
Lt &
. L]
~

]

R
T}:& A
4 1a2

Ol s

i B

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2

AT

“um i

—ememntina,

’;' ; W7 :. ;-
.t{:.-t “'?
- Aot A

i

»lz

il
umm?& i

o
fod
2
- )
- e
20 =
o 0
1
o L
D P )
c £}
& -
[t
o

River C:

|

[via

a3
Loy
ey

Deegy
Crarvte
San

Sa
“
Eoocn

[, TV
v MNeany

b . —



| ey _
Suip|ing A1) Py

I EVREE Lo FULTAY

N VS T

LONRAOURY

BIRREAY G e
By
3ug sitp oy

amgsa

0= % 21095

Ll |9+~ BEX G

C-10

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



i —
& o» S, 05 ‘
L3 R ‘“? ”5
i B T jjf ic’
:He 5@"“'—: ; g3y
'

= i.)
C{';;
A
>

m} o
&) \8

C-11

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



_

Swppng Sn) sy
ERR N X ]

vl

WV

HOTR _S:M.ux

o= 3 izioTg

e

{751 i At
VS | 2/ oo
 Cas

C-12

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



EXHIBIT D

Includes "Platform Easement" described/depicted on the attached Nederveld Survey (Project No.
08100149.1) and area depicted on attached Via Design drawing.

D-1

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



TERLONG L e rad | b sapes BRI 08
i
IS NG a2

TEAT FLRARKIIC hrais §

E0eT 37 QLSS LT
BEOAS, p

b A
LS LTINS

m. (S gt S RN T R

s V9 g
[ S andr el 474
parr TG cend he

UNY TN

psne P2 g g

LT S T LI ¥ PR,

TACHS US| PTG ~ 3
A B by v @

EASLOLKY TR -
NN RO
% BUSUMNR U Bogg - £

ezt
SUMELL A RUUEw PUISIING AR NI 23] AN Tostaps inasdest

BLOMENES crrgvag pur 4 nige ey
R L (ERE P T ST

D Fip A, PN ki wrady wmndassas)

Sunibo 0p (39 2226 13540 wekT MOS 43 i gisn ber Gy
RIUDGE [Rgew (ST DY) JT 0N 4n 3oy Giae; 307 g 1935 Ze va )%y,

I 3w 7Y

LR SN PR ]
ALY TNV

O LELL B EL Y

7

............. SRR RT— | ¥ (RIS

CaTL RN
PRZITA

PRaryy 1230 TR 28 DINelea X} RN DO O P05 DTA 0 B WIS AYY apme

BUDET 8, 05,005 e
BU iy £ pe fonim jasr ppit Etasy DORSI
DIBIGT W0y 2MIY UL

e JURN B I0T O (A QOO wianey R PP A W

OV IS D2 35 s LU Blavisunnss

A
G Be A B0 st 100
SN

dwr pwiw

ETON

4 z LAY Wy S Xdog Pwis 43 AN MY Nz G wernae b
ig s;zunll‘m ALY S e Sk, WOV Ry BOG KD g A GN I 3G LSU IS BUD UG HOG Ty 46 45 T e pepsd g 0Oty Lur)
> ) s - t e.i:n.._ F03EY 7 TOMa PUT HBF TNy LIDsD 42 Aps N0 Jadk BF AUB 27 BT 0 DT 10y el e 4
. 20r BPIY Yrs awoy, d
N O e v it LITYLS NOAT
N oty EOAEGN A 05 CTEV S
i~ ATTE I vC r0dBN
= Leannbog 30 jnlg MR 21 S e N_», —— ——— — T =y =
% 29 BUG0 SB35 £f 3,00, PHRIN FIBNY UG §0) PNOE 30 Buy WIROS A% o wiesuones  led .. v . EAR . R .
2 Aoagiam wii 0} Scowng Buisn Giov i si gl GuND % PEgT 3.98.20000%
- Pruyl Dunpang Bleibode w3 je B30 37 21 peA G0 M PPAREG IS
R OT P M S LIoN vt TN 0 A0 PUI DI NI TD KidiSae S o
! YIS DG Sy IROT 39t DUBD IND SOUE MBTOPLSNG S2U001 Wng ST 658
: IO GF BV 12 DURS ISBMQAYE 8 1T Ludsscsinl G0 fORM0 0y SEdg S50l .
SOLL JRET v PRI S0 LBy AP ROV NG LU0 G A0 i jueg o
S8 BE BN P EISY S0 130G Lo A3 pR0HM & 19 00 DY IRIRISYT Iovedst g o
FNUAOIG 0 Tudeg WST O 38 ST 1 94,805008 M PN
MGG GRS EEL SR ECANE BUN SRRy B puS L e2ul 47 BT Diguis S i
¢ Boase anied ¥ Gube aw Wi ey SOPD SOOI GRYY O SNE 199 246 *
AHSORUNCE IOIGY 11054 £0TT MGE I iON DS Tous BT M2 era 38 = m 4
INBU] S0 QUG T DL 0T IDGRSE UG T T W0 PILRGS GRS & M
X ..u..rl.c.»«\..vm 4G W00 AN 7Y g 07 DB D S WAIN S P RN 1% 095 o 13 O
FLPLABERS INMG) v i0T SBC JO JR BHGL 1At M e BAor lhapeas o B i
R i T R R T P »n H
oy Aoy jdy 0T £3 SE 0T O MWD AR st 0 Suwieanied 5o ' m
POTBEIG RIS TR Py 10 AT M 7L ST WIS O ay iSSeraon ﬂ v \ M o
YL 9O ST LB B Z2 BERG WO 55 ED ST W ODRas KD Wby = i~ ¥ N S ke . :
TINOD Jew Uy SUS 5o Aivy TOXS SN YD PV LT SICT PO 30 1T Saar (¥ = : —— ——Y
A3 pazooss avt 1 el puo PE P L YT 6103 90 1150 4res NIN3ERI Bamet m D H ) R Rl B wm—
RWANIOHE gy MOmR SBIEDSENI GRinD : / / sz gy 4.‘.'
b AIDIRG JOC0 DNy DI} G PUEIAS g I PR AT D SPMNG . ...ﬂo...«m«pw ‘ 7 r”
[0 SUPIRNS S Iniosed iy Braalup (0 auly Avd 03 : 0 0968 BBNGLICS v 201 ) oA 5_ (3% BN
L AIUDUE R GUTY FPE SPPEN STMUL BIK O Ts MLOLSLe SN 2IudGE RO N 2t
IR QL W D8 EraPEH B0 BRI 38 DU FrSTalp a0 NED wnees 3 Sy A0S S by 1 7 .
RUYT BT YO FYp 8y WD THDDS §OOF QYL D HLOD (DY DE 21 ALOIESmuLIN 4 y i
AIE 039 SEC W, 50 FlI0N PG GRe; ooes ¥ 55, Cr. WS 5B .»,_ ] PR ~ e
EanabaG ;0 oty Wiy 01 pE 10T L8 0 24 LIsON gl g RO LaNy STl i} MM}G: e
ILOL PPLBHS #2008 PSSOV POUT 40 (PR 9955 GHION SuP 55 idiety ISTONNCE g} n
G (I 1% Y1) TRy SORDY N Iy IR SGp DIOKY III TL e 8,80 Sy 1ON
I ITiy paig KOS QT G5 30D IO AND SEDIGNDD VU 10 SWINAum) } 3
SO QBP0 Pt HOG KIDi 10 52 DT v PIDEILS SO iy Kruecn Fl'.ll.llnl.l.l.l.l.l1.l".lsl|.l.l
ek WOERS DUDL) 1r ANy Dy (v BE 10) in jard 1D INGAIEFT NSCH Y TR

v

D-2

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



- ——r
. .
ek rmma

e b waty oo
oy PR on

TR (6vag wy
mv \Q /o .\OQ = ‘M..\ud\ o
1A
14

UOITE W FY :
Anppng an) vuy . e e o s

-~
A g0
LG L
o -
e .
Fa o
o aree
b= g

o e, -
ey
-
-
o mn Apre
- - l’-’.’l -
ox
S PRLES . a2 - -
- e
-
- o
-, - ’
e, %
oo g
co TR . —— s oty = e
«REH TSI, o
AL ]
AR
4 -

D-3

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



EXHIBIT E

[Depiction of ""view line' from Monroe Avenue]

(See attached Via Design drawings)

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



Biog U Bl

Rearna

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2

| via

USRS Eo i

ZZLTON

=



EXHIBIT F

Terrace Easement Area

Includes "Terrace Easement"” described/depicted on the attached Nederveld Survey (Project No.
08100149.1) and area depicted on attached Via Design drawing.

F-1

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



A L A TP  CRIMONT | N e tpand S G ._ - e AT
SVEC eIl Mg :ac..zao...,.oiw.ﬁ PV . 55 U B4 — o i
e . 83 | o AN wr s . . N . SN THE Vet i3 ned < fue
O B A Gik B Tragee SRS WO PUIDY = D FUSIRL IR ATOAMY IR JHIBBIY sy e g A Smat Bonm it g xS g g s :s:‘.wﬂ. h«.
Ry e M tns e partiy R g e . : S
umu V.;m.u ?fmuﬂ 12 e pag - SIS PG, ¢ Ve K3 R wp b sy ideny P T
2 L OMmE I = .W W... wm : - ; i 3 suiiempen .
SRS “l, 4 i _: u N).&z,ﬁ POISUSUIR BArnTayy o By £ c\_m..un L] pw..m IR WY DL 1 e ey eqp Sunms Fe
2 ..wvﬁ..‘ﬁmmﬁ : m Y vemump wandunan « g IR Yoo L9 BAY S w3 06 n e Bag 02 e 26 ee 3954 tots
P - 2 EX LTS
; A ..x...n. ?: Il\ ;VN 2 @raseTy - [T 1950068 Y s qﬂ.vﬁ?e. i wrory puk P OL IO SHON g ey N oG e
R ALY Wi o .H.. .vw.. PTF Ay BagE ey e 107 Jo iae FYAS NGO RGL 0 sy 3y
- X z..‘.. — ~ - e IONTE T JO0M pd Dzt anany DTN I Jixe ey bt Suder g0 9605000 |
ESE I 1T . 10 . o S
RIS ¢ - ..u..t:.w.. ShL 7 o BE 3 0 e 30 i e .ms.:iF.?:& S22 pegertar ~
o R VIS [00Y SR bt g0 AUD WML e RS WIS v/t medisige
- Y SOy Soy S0 Mty 3w g wvmu ..M».MQ v w. WG i i Bt 23T popahass (o .:)wucu.‘- emas
e P .. - . B39 Dy o o v s
\\ 7 ;.,ommu 9 TH0y s o R e R SR R MR iy
| A & G TAN Cmlpicy a4
o e e | I3TYLS NOAT
ELEE PO Suwh By ;v.. ARV AR
T . L~ LLL L8 AP heBY
oo Dacr ;2 & AUy Cer b °E 10 jung 3y VWSS — P > . ;
O e L0 SR veREN SIURNL G e ws waoy 2 &v SIS BT E PPy s o wxl
Sepgvh i Sateng G SOT O Ba5 200 MGD TEE CPE Ree i .
! . B R - WO Sv oAy S ooy 19E Grp R.v?vv..mu.. ...«x.»c..
s 1934 ,u~ VU 8o S0 000 Dy ..ts..tcna % NG it OF GNIuled LUz P S Dy o :
M 58 0T 8y 50 M ST Yt KNG Jédy o R P Fof 199 - SR 12 NS Wi NP e . ) ;
i Mo CF TO7 R BuA (SO ONS Wiy (o TBIOILUAT O DESUENID .4« wh%a ﬂ._.“..,.k - !
] AT G LT v GBI 10 NGLielw KRR e HUE PO L0 ANy Mg Juing L, . s
4 DS RSP mIa) g pyee Buit; S350 PONSTm 2 ¢ saed sen 2 INIAGSYE Dvasn S U !
] K SesE
SFET 0 see dy) i gesy Ly ; i o8 ;
23u3ut Srus rpmy - ¥ X ICLiS & - !
LA T N 24 .. v.»b? CORIRIC BRUD D P ROt 3 e b.ugt N g . i
\.v bww B i co: PO BN Lnpes jou SH i@ Sep jax Ze g S <4 ¢
it nagsnan :wn..r: ..9‘. 28 88 AL Q0 OV IdusnT 5 ass 2oy s, o».V:Q - N I S 3
i v.uc.é R R N R N D R Y v bo At - - 1 it :
CHGORE §7 3u Sup OF v ABT IS 10 sun yhates v dim st 190 ey O 5o :
.M»vm.wm!wﬁ ARG Bl A0 DOV IR 1B Q9Gr wr ey iy A€ detxts zosiion auy X3 i ~
} (30 0 001} 3N iy 10 Ry 18 25 SO0 K95 ST rs . 06 ¢ bat 3 :
s on R p
o Fivay ..n?f ....,uh. w30 sn O[5 LD JROPGINIS A0 0 busueasoy ot = :
T O3 IO AUD WAL WL 08 wWIDT 20.8¢ istaiites m £ o R .
i .».:ao:. _M” ) .z..: Q.h, U S8 2goe 10 58 wvipt @ ennds 53 ol . P
' ) i Sy evea i A3 W02 1N G0 ey 7y siey pas o p309 Gt AN Y . .
..
R T Y T BN s o nanisys we: S A g ¥ 2w
(5] ¢ AL ROTNRT  eiwries o

WIBLINE dgp #RES Fiepoinze fwinse, 7 FER
PRI D% 01w, SOMOT DUOINE gng Glrigs IGSHsS porarisi o\wwdu:“ 4 AR TS
O PRl & Jonasios g dﬁ.....,f 49 Bl S5 0 1% 00ST LeCSLT o7 ho,.
e e EEt-TH R om S ERaBRN O ausp qize u BTt oucv... .?
i M‘k.wh\ﬁn M.05.28035 5 Eunoig Pivus B ox K93 STt 45 mi0d Wauis o Sy ....,.v.e
ey Ay N

m. M.:b..q,:.»s;nn_..bw: CE BN QBB 3y ELéy o q.-\J.n« 13 g5 2 b y52m oy
[t i . A qR se WL G010 30N A1y D BATL Py MoERS POy
b wanlizg g0 ,c(\. e RT PO g0 w.b. t.t». S divm PNRD e GO
wi..em YEGIT Rinayr e 1Y foTT 49 tea DIOL VOB B 53 NS pewaang c,r...
k
£ i ..ww‘m G By Shnop jo v Foom e Buder s TF re WSE L1020
i ..u S.M.m. e »m.,.»\ P SR i ot ABOINIBEG vz Thaduaiudn
mﬁ . vv.v,._ Kyssitd et ..cun\. SI0NG $B £ @B W dauaes ‘.w Wi Aanen

Sy % DY 02 A R0y e e oy ROETr WL LN W80 T "l'llll\“m‘ln‘:.“m“l"llln'.ll-

T,

4

g e e o o o o e
¥
by
-4
/

>

Tirs

s
2

P

<.

' NV
DA RETE S 4]

-

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



STl S nws = FR AR
A Tel S0TARI . AT Y [= 2O\ SNI>CS™]

-

s A
o e, — ——— s\ 7 8 ., & = -
. -7 -

H
H
I N [EEYNO,

i

———— Ao A S 3 i

. -
3 i g
R RN RN A O

3
»
f
42}

!
Leeryrenareny

e e e -

_: m_.»_

v

EROKCH =u..c...,~,_u£

AT Y Dy

pa1 1

e I  —

s et it | o B $ S e n
“Ter oy H
3
LR O
S
Sren PR e e
tns i
v - ) M
- LT
{
i
- .

- -

F-3

GRAPIDS 61448-133 224901v2



1811 4 Mile Road, NE

Grand Rapids, Mi 49525 2442
616 361 2664 VOICE

616 361 1493 FAX

www.progressiveae.com

Item IV

July 25,2008
Revised August 11, 2008

Mr. Jim Watt, Assistant General Manager
SMG-Van Andel Arena/DeVos Place

130 West Fuiton

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503

Re: Structural Review ~ River City Building Renovation Project
Dear Jim:

We have completed our review of the structural drawings and calculations provided
for the renovations to the River City Building as they affect the adjacent DeVos Place
structure, as you requested. In performing our review, we assessed the information
provided for general compliance with the Michigan Building Code and standard
engineering principals; however, a detailed assessment including calculations and
analysis was not performed. Although not considered necessary, if a more in-depth
analysis is desired, we would be happy to provide these services for you.

In particular, there were four areas of structural review for the affects of the new
construction on the DeVos Place structure as it related to each easement, as follows:

1. Grade level sasement for the alleyway to the west of the River City
Building.

- There is no significant structural impact of the new construction for the
grade level easement. Foundations for the new construction were
positioned in such a way to minimize or eliminate any affects.

2. Terrace level easement for the alleyway to the west of the River City
Building.

- There is no significant structural impact of the new construction for the
terrace level easement. The new framing is self-supporting and does not
impose any significant loading onto the existing structure.

3. The easement associated with new elevator and stair tower structure.

- The impact of the new elevator and stair tower was reviewed. Although the
new elevator and stair tower structure is self-supporting, the foundations of
the existing building were used to help support a portion of the loading from
this new structure. Calculations performed by SAl were provided which
indicated that the additional loading had been included, considered, and
found to be acceptable. Snow drifting from the higher elevator and stair
tower structure was analyzed for the additional loading on the existing roof,
which was also found acceptable.

4. The easement associated with the new mechanical platform.

- The impact of the mechanical platform columns bearing atop the existing
roof structure was reviewed to determine if these affects had been
considered. Calculations performed by SAl were provided for this area
indicating that the additional loads from that platform on the existing
structure had been analyzed and found to be acceptable.



Mr. Jim Watt, Assistant General Manager
July 25, 2008 (Revised August 11, 2008)
Page 2

In summary, we have found that the affects of the renovations to the River City
Building on the existing DeVos Place have been considered and addressed.

Sincerely,

PROGRESSIVE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERING

ST e

Christopher J. Masacek, P.E.
Structural Engineering Discipline Leader

CJM/msp

01100311/008
XAWMA. MNT1NN21 1\ 20NR\mNR1 1) . Ravicad dAne



Item IV

sal

structural associates incarporated

August 12, 2008

Mr. Brian Barkwell

VIA Design Inc.

44 Grandville Ave. SW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503

RE:  River City Building
Considerations for Adjacent Construction

Dear Brian:

There have been some questions recently regarding the consideration of the impact of the
proposed addition to the River City Building on the existing adjacent building. | am writing this
to explain some of the measures that SAI has implemented in the design of the River City
Building addition with regard to these concerns. There are four main elements that impact the
adjacent building: Mechanical Platform; Stair and Elevator Tower; Terrace; and Loading Dock.
An important factor in the design of all of these elements is that SA! has had access to the original
building drawings, with which we were able to accurately determine the capacity of the existing
members and consider this in our design. In addition to studying the drawings, SAl also made
field visits to verify the in-place construction to make sure it corresponds with the
documentation.

The first item, the mechanical platform, was designed to minimize the impact of placing
mechanical equipment over the existing adjacent roof. By framing the platform in such a
manner that it contacts the existing structure only at the top of the existing columns, the platform
impacts only the columns and foundations directly below them. One of the consideratiohs when
placing a new obstruction over an existing roof is the effect that the new construction has on
drifting snow on the structure. The mechanical platform has been kept above the existing roof,
allowing wind to pass through the space below negating the potential for snow drifts to occur.
Once the loads from the new mechanical platform were determined, proper details were
developed to carry this new load through the existing structure safely to the foundation.

The second item, the elevator and stair tower, was also designed to have minimal impact on the
adjacent construction. The geometry of the tower was a major consideration in the design, as
there are several major elements close to the location of the tower that were not to be disturbed
if at all practical. During the development of the plan, a survey was completed of the two

62 Commuae e SV Suile 100 e Grand Rapids, ME 341505
Phone (OTe 1078100 @ fax s 1n! 4378107
SAltnddana L o 6200 fronwaood 0 e Aishawaka, '\ o714

Phonis 5740 2555801 eavww gowitheat.com



Mr. Brain Barkwell
August 12, 2008
Page 2

buildings so that their relationship to each other could be determined as well as additional
verification of the existing member sizes and locations. Once the survey was complete, the
geometry of the stairwell was adjusted to fit between the elements of the building we were trying
to fit between. Although the area is very congested, the effort was a success, requiring the
resupport of only a few members. New piles, which will have properties similar to those used in
other areas of the adjacent building, are proposed to support the new construction. These were
chosen so that the long term effects of the weight of the structure on the supporting soil will
result in minimal settlement and therefore help keep the old and new construction working
together in harmony. Above the roof elevation, the rest of the stair and elevator tower rises
above the existing construction with the exterior skin cantilevered from the core of the tower,
reducing the area within the existing building that the tower impacts.

The framing for the terrace was conceived so that it also will have minimal impact on the
adjacent building. The roof framing consists of steel beams supported by a girder located on the
west side of the terrace, which is in turn supported by columns, one each at the north end of the
building and one near the south end. The north column is part of the new stair tower. The south
column is the only tie of this element to the adjacent building, as it is planned to be supported by
a new pier below grade that will be tied into an existing retaining wall.

The effect of this new column on the existing structure is negligible. Because we have access to
the original design drawings, we know that the wall we propose attaching to was designed as a
retaining wall. This is advantageous because it means that the wall was designed to resist the
load of the soil that was to be placed against it as well as support the weight of the structure
above. The magnitude of the load added through the proposed column is not great when
compared to the capacity of the wall and foundation already in place. Because the location of
the proposed column is east of the outside face of the existing adjacent building, the load added
to the wall counteracts the bending forces the wall is subjected to by the earth that it is now
retaining, reducing the effect of its current loading condition.

The loading dock area under the terrace at street level is proposed to contain a loading dock and
service entrance to the River City Building. The potential loading for this area will change as
trucks will no longer have access to the area directly adjacent to the building to the west,
lessening the magnitude of the load against the retaining wall. The one footing for the new
construction in this area has been extended below the frost line and again the magnitude of the
load from this footing is less than the effect of a truck driving into the alley in its current
configuration.

The engineers at SAl have spent a considerable amount of time studying the adjacent building to
understand its behavior and assure that the proposed construction at the River City Building will



Mr. Brain Barkwell
August 12, 2008
Page 3

have no negative effect on it. It is my hope that this level of care has been transmitted through
the details contained in the documents for the new construction. If you have any questions
regarding the proposed structure or would like to discuss any aspect of the project in greater
detail, please do not hesitate to contact me at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

ot A G

Dirk A. Buttke, PE
President



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock
Chairmon

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

lew Chomberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Van Andel Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

e i i i i o et st
e e T e e e R P Rt g
NVENTION / ARENA AUTHORIT

|
ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

<

Diversity Business Rationale

The demographics of West Michigan continue to change. Additionally, our client base is
extending beyond our immediate area. West Michigan looks different than it did five, ten,
or more years ago — and will continue to evolve over the next decade.

These differences mean substantial benefits for DeVos Place®, Van Andel Arena®, and
DeVos Performance Hall. People of different backgrounds bring unique perspectives to
the business challenges facing our community. Greater diversity enhances our ability to
innovate and maintain a competitive edge. This ultimately benefits our employees, our
valued customers, and our community.

Diversity Statement

We believe our future rests in our ability to embrace change and leverage diversity
through leadership, education, employment, suppliers, and continued community support.
We believe that diversity is critical to our business strategy and will improve our
competitiveness and prospects for long-term success.

Vision Statement

To foster an inclusive environment which the unique talents and perspectives of each
individual are respected, valued, understood, and leveraged.

Mission Statement

To guide the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority in establishing a
visible commitment to diversity that will support our vision, our business strategies, our
board behavior, relationships with customers, suppliers, and our communities in 2 manner
that enables our organization to reach our full potential and, in so doing, maximizes value
to our clients and the community we serve.

EVOSPLACE

DeVos Place®

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6500
616.742.6590



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item VI
DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Aug 20 | GR Sports Hall of Fame MJD Concourse/ 12:00 PM Client arrival/Walk-thru
All Banquet
Thur, Aug 21 | GR Sports Hall of Fame MID Concourse SP-7P Banquet
All Banquet 7P-9P Induction ceremony
Huntington Club 8:15PM Photo session
Fri, Aug 22 Available
Sat, Aug 23 Available
Sun, Aug 24 | Available
Mon, Aug 25 | Available
Tue, Aug 26 | Staffing, Inc. MID Banquet B 9:00 AM Diversity training
Wed, Aug 27 | Available
Thur, Aug 28 | Available
Fri, Aug 29 Available
Sat, Aug 30 Available
Sun, Sep 1 Available
Mon, Sep 2 Closed — Labor Day Holiday
Tue, Sep 3 American Idols RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Wed, Sep 4 Available
Thur, Sep 5 Available
Fri, Sep 6 Available
Sat, Sep 7 Available
Sun, Sep 8 Available
Mon, Sep 9 Savor...Grand Rapids MID Banquet B 5:00 PM TIPS training
Tue, Sep 10 SMG DG Huntington Club 12:00 PM Suite Administrators Luncheon
MID Banquet C 12:00 PM Group Sales Luncheon
Savor...Grand Rapids Banquet D 1:00 PM TIPS training
Wed, Sep 11 | Professional Bull Riders RS Arena 8:00 AM Dirt load-in
Thur, Sep 12 | Professional Bull Riders RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Fri, Sep 13 Professional Bull Riders RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Sat, Sep 14 Professional Bull Riders RS Arena 8:00 AM Dirt load-out
Sun, Sep 15 Available
Mon, Sep 16 | Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 8A-5P Load-in
Tue, Sep 17 Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 8A-5P Load-in
Wed, Sep 18 | Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Sep 19 | Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Fri, Sep 20 Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Sat, Sep 21 Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 11:00 AM Performance
3:00 PM Performance
7:00 PM Performance
Sun, Sep 22 Ringling Bros. Circus RS Arena 2:00 PM Performance




HO4d 1 XIL9 1NO FA0N VZi1-dol1
d11-d0€:9 | d0g:01-d0E9 d11-d0¢:9 a3gaaN FONVINIOLYAd d0i-d8 HdAdQ
asi JIIVIL T JNF T SV SY3HSN AV lv3ddn d0¢:L-dL TIVH TV.LIOTA 1 TVIISSVIO —HdAd €1 1d3S LVS
ONILIIN | A6S TI-AV00-8 g-v 9D VORIFARId
d0€:01-d0€9
d0€:01-d40¢-9 LvOO 1
HO4 1 XIL9
dI1-d0¢9 | d0¢:01-d0t:9 d11-d0€:9 da3agdaN FONVINIOIIId d0t-d8 HdAQ
asi JHIVILT LN T SV S¥FHSN AV Lvagdn dogL-dL TIVH TV.LIOTY I TVOISSVIO —HdAdQ
¥O0(] UOA™]
3s3( 1s0H
Usiam SUON QUON SUON o) ONILIIN | Nd6S:TT1-INV00:8 av 1ivd ALISYFAINN ANOLSYINAOD
QUON SUON SUON SUON o) ONILIFN | INVOO:T1-INV00:8 vV O ONILIIN SATOVNVIN ALID Z1 1d3S T4
d0€:01-d¢ TVSIVIHTY d01-do¢:L
asi 0 0 0 AV TVSAVIHTI d9-d0t-¢ HdAQ TVSIVIHAY — HdAd
SNOISSIS TVIINID | Wd6S:TI-INV00:8 qd71Ivd
SLNOAVIIL | d6S TI-INV00:8 VOO
1S HONNT | Nd6S:11-AV00-8 v TIvd aans » SSOYOYON “YINYVM | 11 .1d3S ‘SYNHL
ID1440 MOHS | Wd6S:T11-NV00:8 Jasod NOILLVIOJIO0D
NOISSIS TVIINTD | Nd6S:T1-INV00:8 a0 11vd NOILISOdSIA 31V.LST TV
d0¢:01-dT TVSIVAHTI d01-dog L
asi 0 0 0 AV TVSIVIHTI d9-d0g'e HdAd TVSYVAHTI - HdAd
ONILFFN S.J0LOTIIA
1S ONILIIN Wd00:S-INV00-8 NOOYTIVOod 40 A¥vO4d 30V'1d LHOI FHL
MOHS 3OVY3ATL
1S LIGIHX3 g-v TIvd AVAITOH NVOIHOIN LSIM 01 LdFS 'aam
YIAOIONVHO VZi-dol HdAd
d0g:01-d0¢°9 LVOD 1 NOILdIDTY WVTI-INdOI TTIVH TVLIOFI
Add0T11 XIL9 JONVINYEOJJ3d do1-d8
vZI-dogTl d0o¢:01-dL dIaaaN TVSIVIHIA dog¢:v-dT
asti JldIVIL T SV SYFHSN AV NI JAON di-v8 HdAd 1749 VIHSOf — OS¥O
1NO JAON W01 — Nd8
d8 TILNN INVIDOUdAENNIA NdotL —INd9 gv 11vd
—O4NI NOILJIOTH Wd9 - WdS Agd0T VIHOO3S
d8-dv d0¢:01-ds NOILVYLSIOTA Wd$ A9dOTHSTIM
HSTIM | LNE T VIN [ IV NI HAOW di-v8 g-v 1T1vd AAVSYTAINNY 4,01 S.AIAVQ OSYD 6 1d4dS ‘SINL
8 1Ld3S 'NOW
L 1d3S 'NNS
LvOD 1
XIL9
dIi-dl di1-dog:9 dddaN HONVINIOId3d d0¢:0t1 —d00:8
OldIvial T LG T SV SYFHSN AV NI JAON ds-dZ1 HdAd SANIRII ANV Sddd THIN
ONILFIN | Nd6S:11-INV00:8 a-0T11vd FAVO JHL 9 Ld3S 'LVS
dNL3s | Wd6S 11-Nd00:9 adD 1TIvd FJAVO FHL ¢ 1d3S T4
¥ Ld3S 'SUNHL
£ 1d9S 'aam
T 1d3S 'Sant
440 - Ava ¥0gv'1 1 1d3S 'NOW
ALRNDIS 321710d S.LAN3 34v.S ISNOH o3 NOILONNS JNIL NOOY 1IN3A3 3lva

800¢ ¥39IN31d3S - @30V'1d SOA3A




1)03Y)) 93peg
1018317 WS1014

(€) 20 IN WOO0Y 1NONVIYE | Nd6S: T1T-INV00:8 €V 0D
3S3( 150H SUON SUON SUON | DD LIGIHXT | Wd6S:T11-INV00:8 V H3 NOOWV
WOO0Y 1NOAVIIL Wd00:S-INd0T € a5
WOO0Y LnoAVIEd Wd0S:€-INd00:C VOO
HONNT | WASHI-NdSTTI vV 1Ive
‘LdIOTI HONNT-TId | WASTTI-VOE 1T A9907 VIHOO3S
ysaq 1s0H NOISS3S ONINIJO | VOE: T1-NV00:01 vV 11ve 'ANOD ADIT0d TVYNOIOTY
£qQoT yspom SUON SUON SUON jor:| NOILVYLSIOFT | WV00-01-INV00:6 A€90T VIHODIS FOYTNNOD 40 YFFNVHD VIIV 4D
NOILVYLSIOTE ONN4-d a0 1T1vd
WOOYa@Ivod WOOY@avog
ONILIFIN o2T11vd
LI9IHX3 qT11vd
1S WOOY LNOAVIIL a-v oy HONTIHAINOD TTVd VINOW 800C | 81 1dIS ‘SUNHL
3j00(J UOAT "ANOD AD170d TYNOIOTY
£qqoT ysjom SUON QUON SUON or:| dN.LIS | Wd6S:T1-INV00:8 VI1TVE | FOUYTNNOD 4O YIGINVHO VIIV 4D
do1-d0¢9
LvOO 1 1NO FAON VTI-dSy6 | AD0d NOATHdAQ
XIL9 FONVINEOJYad dSt:6-d8 HdAd
doT1-d0€:9 | dOE:01-d0E9 aiaa3aN NI FAON Wd-IWVII | J00d NOAT/HIAQ
DI4IVIL T INT T SV S¥3HSN | IV ONRIILVD AVa v TTVH TV.LIOTY SONI HOIH
prend WBIN_
1909y 25peg
101eA9[] YS1a1]
(€) ¥ood IN WOOY 1NOAVIIL | W65 1T-INV00:8 qg-v oo
53 1s0H SUON SUON SUON LIGIHX3 | Wd6S-11-INV00:8 V HE NOJWV
NOILVYLSIOFY ONN4-d @D 11Tvd
WOOdAIvOod NOOIAIvVOod
1S LIGIHX3 g 11vd FONTITINOD TTVd VINDI 800T
HONNT a1ivd "D0OSSY JIOMSSTId TVLIN
1S LIGIHX3 2 T1Ivd JL3FHS JO TIONNOD "TLNIFLNI L1 1d3S 'dIMm
J$a(J 3s0H NOILVZINVOYO
£qqoT ysjom SUON SUON SUON o) ONILIIN Wd00:+-NV00:-L g-v O S INIAISTId ONNOA
preny WSIN
I01RA9g YS121]
(€) wo0d IN
3s3( 3150H SUON SUON QUON | DD dNL3S | W65 11-INV00:8 V H3 NOOWYV
j¥soc] 1S0H
(€) o0 IN SUON SUON SUON | 9O JLIGIHX3 Wd00:S-INV00:S JH3 MOHS AO04J ‘00 NIAYFd NVA
HONMT aTivy
LIFIHXT 2T11vd "00SSY IOMSSTHId TVLIN
1S NOISSIS TVIINAD vV 1Ive L3FHS 40 TIONNOD "TLNYFLNI 91 Ld3S 'SINL
Js3 1s0H
(€) 300d N SUON SUON SUON 02 dN.L3s Nd00:S-INV00:8 JHE MOHS dOOd '00 NIQY¥Id NVA
HONNT aTiva
LIGIHX3 211vd "DOSSV HOMSSTId TVLIN
1S NOISSIS TVIINID v 11vd JLIFHS 40 TIONNOD "TLNYIFLNI S1.1d3S 'NOW
1 LddS 'NNS
ONILIFIN | Wd6S-TI-INV00:8 ao 11vd
ONILIIN | Wd6S:TT-INV00:8 399 VOIJINRId
d0€:01-d0g9
d0€:01-d0€9 LVOD 1
ALIMNO3S 30110d SAW3 44v.1S 3SNOH o3 NOILONNS JNIL WOOY 1N3IAI 3ilva

800¢ J¥39IN31Ld3S




do1-d9

LvOD 1
' XIL9
HO4 1 d01-d0¢:9 d0¢:01-d9 ddadaN
asi JIAIVILT JNA T SV SY43HSN A4 FJONVINIOLYddd dS¥:6-d0t:L HdAQ O dNNIAV
dnigs a0 Tivd NOLLNFANOD TVYNOIOTY SHY 800 $T 1498 '@am
d01-d9
LVOD 1
HO4d 1 XILl9
asti d01-d0¢9 d0€:01-d9 d3a3aanN FONVINIOIIdd dSt:6-d0g L HdAQ
A20A 1 OlddVaL T LN T SV SYFHSN AV NI IAONW ds-v8 A00d NOATHIAQ O ANNAAV
dNnlas d-0 11vd NOLLNAANOQOD TVNOIDTYI SHY 8007 €7 1ddS 'SanlL
ast NI JAON WdIT-INd9 | A00d NOATHAAQ
A00A 1 0 0 0 AV dIILS 3SNOH adl HdAd O dNNIAV - ¥0d 7T LddS 'NOW
d0£:6-d0¢-1
d0€:6-d0¢:1 LvOD 1
HO4 1 XIiL9
d9-dot:1 d0g:$-d0g’1 d9-do€-1 dagaanN 1NO FAON Nd8-INdS
asit OldIVIL T LN T SV SYTHSN AV FONVINIO1d3d WdS-INdE HdAd 1 SdOd ~ OS¥YD 17 1d9S 'NNS
d0€:01-d0E9
d0£:01-d0¢9 1vOD 1
HO4 1 XIL9
d11-d0€9 | d0€:01-d0g9 d11-d0€9 gda3daN
ast OlddViL 2 JNE T SV SYIHSN p:\4 FJONVINAIOJIAd WdOTI-INd8 HdAQ 1 SdO0d —OSY¥H
NMO@IVIL | Wd6S-TI-INd00:§
1S LIGIHX3 Nd00:5-NV00:8 V HI NVOIHOIN LSIM 40 MOHS Tvdndg
No0(J uoAT
£qqof yspPM NOILLdIDTY | Wd6S T1-NV00-8 4-vOod
JSap ISOH SUON SUON QUON o) HANNIA | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 1Ived YINNIA TV.LIdSOH HLTV3H OYL3IN 0T 1d3S 'LvS
d0€:01-d0E9
d0€:01-d0g:9 LvOD 1
HOd 1 XIL9
d11-d0g9 | d0€01-dog:9 d11-d0¢:9 a3aaIanN
asi OI4dVdL T JNI T SV SYTFHSN )\ FONVINIOIIdd WdOT-NdS8 HdAd I SdOd — OS¥D
DNILLIIN | WL6S 11-INV00:8 WOOIAIVOod HLTVIH ALNORId
NOISSIS TVIINID dST:TI-NVOE 01 Vv TIvd
NOISSTS TVIINTD | INVSI:0I-NV0E:8 Vv Tivd "ANOD ADITOd TVNOIOTA
£qqo7 yspPm QUON SUON SUON o) LSvIAvVIdd WV0CT-8-INVOE:L Ad9d0T VIHOO3S FOYTWNOD 40 YTGNVHD VIIV YD
LIGIHXd | Wd6S:T1-INd00-¢
18 dNJ1ds Wd00-€-INV00-8 V Hi NVODIHOIN 1SdM 40 MOHS Tvardd
AqqQoT yspam
}oo(J U0k QUON QUON QUON o}: | dNL3S | Nd6S:11-INd00:9 d-d11vd YINNIQ TV.LIASOH HLTVAH OdLIN
NOILLVYLSIOTA ONN4-d d-0 1T1vd
104
ONILIIN oT11vd
LIgIHXd q711ve
18 NOOY LNOVIIL a-vod JONTIFINOD TTVd VINOI 800T 61 1d3S TIdd
d0€°01-d0og S TVSYVIHTY d01-dL
ast 0 0 0 A4 NI JAOW d1-v8 HdAQ TVSYVIHTI — OSUD
ONILIIN | Wd6S-T1T-INV00:8 WOOIAYvOod HLTV3H ALRIORId
ALIINO3S 301710d S.LN3 J44v1S ISNOH 03 NOILONNS 3NIL NOOYH IN3A3 3iva

800¢ H3dIN31d3S




0¢ 143S 's3antL

0 0 0 0| v JYO.LSTA ISNOH adl HdAd 6C 1d9S 'NOW
d0€:s-doc-1
LvOO 1
XIL9
HO4 1 d0€:6-dT d9-dog:1 aIgaanN
asi J1JIVAL T 1NT T SV S¥3HsSN | Vv FONVINROLITd dsi:6-de HdAd O ANNIAV
NOISSIS TVIINTD g-v 11ve
LIGIHXT a0 11vd NOILNTFANOD TV¥NOIOTY SHY 8007 87 1d3S 'NNS
d0€:01-d0E:9
% d0€:¥-dog:TI
1vOd1
d0€-01-dL d11-d0¢:9 XI1L9
HOd 1 % doet-dl % d§-d0e:Cl a3aaanN JONVINIOIIId ds1:01-d8
asi JlddVIL ¢ JNI T SV SJdHSn | v JONVINIONIAd dS1:4-dT HdAd O INNIAVY
¥20Qd IN
%o 1S0H
AqqoT ysom SUON SUON SUON o) | JHI Nd00:+-INV00:9 OHI | SIALLNIONI % SONILIFN JILOVIVD
NOISS3S TVIINID gv 11vd
LIGIHXd a0 11vd NOILNIJANOD TVNOIOTY SHY 800 LT 1ddS "LVS
ONLLITN Nd00:$-NV00:8 43 0d D J0 JIAYAS AO00J OOSAS
d0€:01-d0g-9
LvOO 1
XI1L9
HO4 1 dog:01-dL d11-d0€:9 aaqIaN
asi JIVIL T JNF T SV SYdHSN | 3V HONVINIOLIId ds1:01-d8 HdAd O NNIAV
J2oq A
3sa( 1SO0H
£qqoT ysiam SUON SUON SUON o) JHH Wd00:+~-INV00:9 OH3 | SIALLNIDNI % SONILIFN JILOVIVD
NOISSTS TVIINID gv TIvd
LIGIHXT ao 11vd NOILLNIANOD TYNOIDZY SHY 800T 97 1d3S i
doI1-d9
A (8 o (A
LvOO 1
d0t-d0e-9 d0€:01-d9 XIL9
HOd 1 % d0c-dl % d5-dog-cl a3qaaN JONVINIO AT dSt:6-d0g:L
ast JlIVIL ¢ INT T SV SY3HSN | AV HONVINIOIIId dS1:4-dC HdAd 0 INNIAV
dNnlL3as gv 1Ive
LIdIHX3 a0 11vd NOLLNIANOD TVNOIOTY SHY 800C | ST Ld3S 'SUNHL
ALIINO3S 32110d S.1N3 44visS 3SNOH | 03 NOILONNS JNIL NooY 1N3IA3 31va

800¢ y38N3Ld3S




